eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

EEEEEEEEEEEEEE

OOOOOOOOOOOOO




Fairfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

Contents

Business performance

Chairman’s and Chief Executive’s review 3
Business review 4
Financial review 7
Governance

Corporate governance 8
Directors’ remuneration report 10

Finance report

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the consolhidated financial statements 12
Independent auditor’s report 13
Consolidated income statement 14
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 15
Consolidated statement of financial pesition 16
Consoldiated statement of changes in equity 17
Consoldiated statement of cash flows 18
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 19
Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the Company financial statements 41
Independent auditor’s report 42
Company income statement 43
Company statement of comprehensive income 43
Company statement of financial position 44
Company statement of changes in equity 45
Company statement of cash flows 46
Notes to the Company financial statements 47

Corporate information
Glossary of terms 55
Company information 55

Information about this report

This document constumites the Annual Report and Accounts of Farfield Energy Limted for the year ended 31 December 2009 in accordance with UK
requiremnents and 1s dated 4 June 2010 The Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009 contamns the Directors’ Report which consists of
the business performance and governance reports on pages 3 to 11 The consohdated financial statements are on pages 14 to 40 and Company financial
statements are on pages 43 to 54 The report of the auditor 15 on page 13 for the Group and page 42 for the Company

20of 55




Farfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

Chairman’s and Chief
Executive’s review

The Fairfield Group (Farrfield) has continued to make good
progress dunng 2009 in the development of its North Sea
business towards the goal of becoming the signficant UK
independent operator The Company completed its first full
year as owner of the Dunlin Area Fields in the northern
North Sea, ably supported by AMEC as Duty Holder
Additional acreage was acqured from the majors and
through the 25" Licencing Round while progress was made
towards first o1l and gas on all the other assets (except
Maureen) in the portfolio

The oil price has recovered from $35/bbl at the end of 2008
to a closing price of $78/bbl The stronger ol price 1s a
result of supply side discipine on the part of OPEC,
coupled with continuing streng demand from non-OECD
countnes, particularly Ctuna Leading forecasters predict
higher o1l prices in 2010 and 2011 as the global economy
comes out of recession In additon to the external
enviranment, other revenues have been well supported by
dernvative financial instruments taken out mn mid-2008
These instruments will continue to provide revenues in the
evenl ol prices remain at current levels

The Dunlin Area Fields remain the only revenue producing
assets, averaging 4,618 (YTD) net barrels per day The
total sales entitlement volume for the year was 1 662 million
barrels Two wells on the Osprey Field, dnilled by the Sedco
704 rg, encountered unswept oill which has been put on
producton The Dunhn platform rig was totally refurbished
ahead of an intensive dnling program on the man field
planned for this year Finally, the Duty Holder relationship
with AMEC has continued to mature and develop, providing
a sound basis for operational confidence

Substantial progress has been made on all of Fairfield's
other assets Static and dynamic models for both the
Tnassic and Terhary reservors in the Crawford Field
support revised ollin-ptace and reserve estimates
Development studies, with export through Marathon's East
Brae facilities, are well advanced and an FDP will likely be
submitted this year with first oil estimated for 2011 Half of
Clipper South was farmed down to RWE Dea SNS UK
Limited in July 2009 with the transfer of operatorship
Commercial and technical work completed by the new
partnership mean that an FDP will likely be submitted in
2010 with first gas estmated for 2012

The Core Area approach was fully implemented in 2009
with the acquisiion of the Skye/Block 6 discoveres just to
the west of Dunlin and exploration acreage to the east of
Dunlin awarded In the 25" Round Further additions to the
portfolio included the 25" Round Block 3/8d over the Staffa
Field Orniginally developed by LASMO in 1992, the field
produced only 4mmbo with production ceasing in 1994
Fairfield plans to proceed with the re-development by a
single well subsea development tied-back to one of a
number of nearby sutable host platforms The 25" Round
Block 211/27e was also added to the portfolio along with
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the acquisition from BP and partners of two licences (P 184
and P 474) over the abandoned North West Hutton Field
Based on detaled technical work, Farfield believes there
are substantial undeveloped volumes to the south of the old
field Further detaled subsurface evaluation based on new
3D sessmic this year and a programme of appraisal in 2011
will likely lead to a phased, sub-sea development tied back
to Dunlin

Finally the Maureen acreage was farmed down to
Endeavour Energy UK Ltd and Challenger Minerals Ltd in
July 2009 The 16/29a-17 well was then dnited with much of
Farrfield’'s share funded through an advance agreement
with Gemini Oil and Gas Ltd Unfortunately the well was dry
and the current licence owners are reviewing future options
As a result of this and the uncertainty about future plans for
Maureen, the Company has considered the asset to be
imparired and has written off the carrying value accordingly

In 2010, the Company wil! continue to look at the most
appropriate mechanisms of funding the development of its
assets There remain a number of optons available to the
Company including existing SPC funding, raising debt and
potentially taking the Company public via an Initial Public
Offering

Farrfield commissioned an independent reserves report
from Gaffney Clhne and Associates for the Dunlin Area in
mid-2009 and then a full review of the portfolio at the end of
2009

The HSE subcommuittee of the Board met four times duning
the year to review the Company's standards, policies and
procedures and overall performance in this cntical area We
are happy to report that there were no Lost Time Injunes in
2009 Three corporate level HSE audits were completed
mncluding a review of the arrangements for contracting and
managing subsea intervention actvities, a review of the
HSE management interface between Farrfield and AMEC
on the Dunlin asset and a review of pre-drilling assurance
plans for the platform

Changes to the Non-Executive Directors on the Board saw
the addition of Andrew Paterson in December 2008 while
Fred Ponsonby resigned in July 2009 Fred has been with
Fairfield throughout its evolution and we thank him for his
mput and commitment to making the Company as
successful as possible Andrew has made an immedate
impact on the Company, drawing on his extensive drilling
and operational expenence

As always the progress that the Company has made in
2009 15 totally due to the efforts and commitment of the
staff We appreciate therr hard work and energy in
delivering therr individual and the corporate objectives for
the year
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Business review

Heaith, safety and environment (HSE)

Farfield's health, safety and environmental polictes set out
a commitment to conduct our business tn a manner that
protects people from harm and preserves the environment
Key actions from these policies include

« Mantaning an Environmental Management System
certificated to the 1ISO 14001 standard,

e Prescnbing annual performance targets and reporting
regularly on those targets to the Board HSE
subcommittee,

+ Assessing HSE nisks in the planning and execution of
all operational activities,

« Ensunng the avalabilty of specialist support and
providing advice to the Executive and the Board, and

s Estabhshing responsibilites for HSE performance
within the organisation

The Dunhn offshore installation 1s operated through AMEC
as Duty Holder, appointed in accordance with the Safety
Case Regulations

Performance in 2009

There were no Lost Time Injunies (LTI) recorded in 2009, a
period that included more than six months mobile ng dnlling
operations and almost two months of diving support vessel
operations, In addition to the continuous operation and
maintenance of the Dunhin facilities

AMEC, as Duty Holder, conducted a Thorough Review of
the Safety Case in accordance with Regulation 13 of the
Safety Case Regulations An addendum to the Safety
Case was also accepted by the Health and Safety
Executive to enable platform based dnling operations,
following a campaign to refurbish the drlling facilities

In February, the Department of Energy and Chmate Change
(DECC) mnvestigated a reported spillage to sea of 33
tonnes of diesel during bunkenng operations on the Dunlin
instailation

An emergency exercise, Invoiving response to a simulated
incident on the Dunhn installation, was successfully carned
out dunng May involving response teams from Faufield,
AMEC and dnliing services contractors

Three corporate HSE audits were carned out dunng 2009

« A review of the arrangements for contracting and
managing subsea intervention activities,

+ A review of the HSE management interface between
Fairfield and AMEC on Dunlin, and

» A review of the pre-dnling assurance plans for the
Dunlin instaliation

Vanation Applcations to the Polluton Preventon and
Control (PPC} and Oil Pollution Prevention and Control
{OPPC) certifications, following transfer to Fairfield of the
Dunlin Instailaton from the previous owners and providing
certification for 2009, were both successfully concluded and
accepted by DECC

In February, Farfield’s appointed Verification Body, Det
Norske Veritas (DNV), verfied compliance of the Dunlin
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installation with the requirements of the European Union
Emissions Trading Scheme for 2008

In accordance with the requirements of the Qslo-Pans
Convention for the Protection of the Marnine Environment of
the North East Atlantic, an annual public statement on
Fairfield’s environmental perforrmance for the year 2008
was submitted to DECC and published on the Company’s
website durnng June 2009

Two audis were carrned out by DNV successfully
confrming continued certficatton to the Environmental
Management Standard SO 14001

In July, the HSE served the Dunhn Duty Holder (AMEC)
with two improvement notices following an inspection of
fabric corrosion mamntenance The first notice, requiring
improved specification of maintenance crtena for fabrnc
corrosion, was satisfactonly discharged in November 2009
The second notice, requiring enhancements to the planning
process, was formally discharged by the end of March
2010

Focus for 2010
Asset integnty, environmentat emissions monitoring and
regulatory comphance tracking are the main focus for 2010

Providing assurance of asset integnty 1s a key element In
the effectve management of major hazards that are
inherent in the process safety elements of oll and gas
producton This 1s particularly mporant on offshore
production facilittes in the late stage of therr operating Iife
cycle A major part of our asset integnty assurance will be
an audit of the processes by which the Dunlin Safety Case
15 actively mamtained by AMEC

Environmental emissions monitoring, and associated
continuing iImprovement, 1s a key part of our long term
environmental management strategy for the Dunlin
faciities The emissions management programmes are also
crucial to the ongoing mamntenance of our 1SO 14001
certification

Regulatory comphance tracking includes the development
of systems and behaviours that ensure effective
maintenance of the necessary certificates and permits that
collectively provide our ‘lcence to operate’  This will
include promoting the awareness of crucial environmental
certification conditions, the reporting of non-conformances,
and providng penodic compliance and commitments
reporting for managemaent

Review of assets

Dunlin

The Dunln Area fields averaged 4,618 bopd of net
production during 2009 while total water injection averaged
64,000 bwpd

Two successful subsea wells were drilled by the Sedco 704
driling ng on the Osprey field, both encounterng unswept
o) The wells were successiully hooked up at the end of
the planned 2008 shutdown The refurbishment of the
Dunlin dnlting rig was completed and driling commenced
on the first platform well An extensive inspection, repair
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and maintenance campaign was successfully completed on
the subsea infrastructure, rectifying faults on the subsea
control system and completing the hook up of the new
Osprey production wells A programme of subsea intelligent
piggmng operations on the Osprey and Merlin lines was also
completed as part of this campagn to gather data for
extensions to the operating lives of these facilities

During the first half of 2010, a review of the Dunln Area
decommissioning labilities s being carmed out in
accordance with the decommissioning cost provision deed
(DCPD) held with the former owners of the Dunlin Area
Assets While this review will not be finalised until the end
of June 2010, the Company has agreed to provide an
additional cash security of $77 million 1n addition to the
existing $273 million securty held by way of a letter of
credit

Staffa Field

Licence P1607, Block 3/8d including the Staffa Field was
awarded to Fairfield Cedrus Limited, with a one well driling
commitment, in the 25th Licensing Round announced on
12" November 2008 Ongnally developed by LASMO in
1992, the field produced only 4mmbo before pipeline
blockages caused production to be ceased in 1994
Farrfield’s defalled technical assessment has focused on
understanding the fundamental causes for these flow
assurance i1ssues and on quantifying the redevelopment
potential Fairfield plans to proceed with the redevelopment
of Staffa via a single well subsea tie-back to one of a
number of nearby suitable host platforms Commercial and
technical discussions have commenced with potential host
operators

Crawford Field

Farfield Acer Limited (Operator) owns 52% of Licence
P209 Block 9/28a which includes the Crawford Fleld lts
partners are Valant Exploration Ltd (29%) and Stratic
Energy (UK) Ltd (19%) In Licence P1284, Block 9/27a,
adjacent to the west, Fairfield Acer Lmited (Operator} owns
25% with EnCore Petroleum Ltd {62 5%) and Granby
Enterprnises North Sea Ltd (Silverstone Energy) (12 5%)

During 2009, the reprocessed 3D seismic over Blocks
9/28a and 9/27a was used to update the mapping of the
Terbary and Trassic ol beanng reservoirs The updated
static and dynamic Tnassic reservorr models and a new
slatic Tertiary reservorr model support revised oil-in-place,
reserves and production forecasts for the Crawford Field A
comprehensive geological and geophysical review has also
resulted in the defimtion and documentation of a Terhiary
prospect inventory across both blocks

The development of the Triassic reservoir will be through up
to three production wells enhanced with multiple hydraulic
factures or mult-lateral sidetracks A study programme to
identify the preferred completion strategy 15 scheduled to be
firished by the end of the first quarter of 2010

Studies and commercial arrangements for the faciities
development via subsea tieback to Marathon's East Brae
platform are also at a high degree of completion
Engineering studies have confirmed the feasibiity of this
option Driling will be by means of a jack-up ng which will
also be used as a base for exporting oil and gas during the
early years of production
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A final development concept decision will be made dunng
2010

Clipper South

On 13th May 2009 Fairfield Acer Limited signed a farm in
agreement with RWE Dea UK SNS Ltd (RWE) Under the
terms of the agreement RWE carnes Fairfield for certain
development costs and paid a proportion of historic costs
from the effective date of 1 July 2008 In return RWE earns
operatorship and a 50% interest in the Chpper South
Potential Producing Area which comprises Licence P00S8
{part Blocks 48/19a and 48/20a) and Licence P465 (Block
48/19¢) Completion of this transaction occurred on 3rd July
2009

Following 1ts assumption of operatorship, RWE has
continued to refine the subsurface understanding and has
revised the static and dynamic models of this Rotliegendes
tight gas accumulation leading to increased gas-in-place
volumes The preferred subsurface development concept
envisages five honzontal mult-fractured wells produced
through a welthead platform

Engineering studies to define the field development concept
to Front End Engineenng Design level were continued in
2009 by Genesis Engineering The ntial base case
concept of a normally unmanned installation was amended
to include accommodation for up to forty persons duning the
development drilling phase, when hydraulic fracturing and
subsequent clean-up through coiled tubing will require a
greater presence of personnel offshore This concept Is
also advantageous as it allows subsequent ng-less
intervention during Mfe of field operations This work was
completed at the end of November 2009 and formed the
basis of an invitation to tender for the detalled design and
construction of the platform in December

It 1s envisaged that the produced gas will be exported via
adjacent host infrastructure Detalled negotiations with the
owners have continued through 2009 and firm offers for
services received (in November 2009 from two hosts are
under evaluation

A draft Field Development Plan has been prepared by RWE
for submussion to DECC m 2010 Following discussions with
DECC, P0O08 Blocks 48/19a and 48/20a are now classified
as a Potential Producing Area and a licence extension to
September 2012 has been agreed

Darwin

Block 211/27e was awarded to Farfield Cedrus Limited,
with a one well dnlling commitment, in the 25th Licensing
Round announced on 12 November 2008 In late 2009
agreements were signed to allow Fairfield to acquire 100%
of the North West Hutton (NWH) interests in Licence P 184,
Block 211/27a and Licence P474, Block 211/27¢ from the
previous owners Amoco (U K) Exploraton Company,
Amoco UK Petroleum Limited, Creco Exploration and
Production (UK) Limited, Enterpnse Ol UK Limited and
Mobil North Sea LLC

Based on detailed technical work completed over the past
three years, Fairfield considers this combined acreage to be
an undeveloped southern extension of the NWH Field New
3D seismic acquisition was completed in 2009 and has
reinforced this understanding The prospective area has
been provisionally called Darwin pending DECC approval
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Development studies for the Darwin Area are underway and
development options include a subsea tte-back to Fairfield’'s
Dunlin platform (24km away) Engmineering studies for the
Dunlin tieback and modifications are well advanced A
phased development concept I1s lkely with phase 1
concentrating upon accessing proven but undeveloped ol
in the southern part of NWH These areas were beyond the
achievable drilling radius of the decommissioned platform
Phase 2 would target further infill locations in NWH plus
prospective volumes 1n the southern part of the Darwin
area

Skye & Block 6

In 2009 Farrfield added further acreage in the Dunlin Area
by completing an acquisition of the Skye/Block 6 area from
Shell and Exxon {Licence P296 Block 211/23a) This
acreage includes two discovenes and a number of
prospecis and leads In addition, an exploration area to the
east of Dunlin {Licence P1681 Block 211/24¢) was acquired
i the 25" Licensing round

Maureen

At the beginning of the year Fairfield Cedrus Limited owned
and operated 100% of Licence P110 Bleck 16/29a
{Maureen field) and 81 14% of Licence 591 Blocks 16/24b
and 16/29b  In July 2009 Fairfield Cedrus Ltd signed a
farm in agreement with Endeavour Energy UK Ltd and
Challenger Minerals Ltd whereby both agreed to
disproportionately fund Fairfield’s share of Well 16/29a-17
Further funding was provided through an advance
agreement with Germini Oil and Gas Ltd

Well 16/29a-17 was dnlled in August 2009 to a Palaeocene
reservorr target within the boundaries of the Maureen Field
The reservorr did not contain commercial hydrocarbons at
the drilled location and the well was plugged and
abandoned Following the dnlling of the well, Challenger
decided not to take up its working interest in December with
Endeavour earning a 38 46% working interest in P110 and
P591 and Fairfield retaining 61 54%

Oil and gas reserves

Cil and gas reserves {mmboe)

Proved Proved and
Probable

2008
Dunkin Area 335 436
Clipper South 260 375
Crawford 87 135
2008 TOTAL 682 948

2009
Dunkn Area 161 333
Darwin 173 290
Chpper South - 107
Crawford 93 143
Staffa 31 61
2009 TOTAL 458 934

At 31st December 2009 the Group's share of Proved and
Probable Reserves were determined by an independent
expert, Gaffney Cline and Associates (GCA) in accordance
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with the defimition of proven and probable reserves provided
by the Society of Petroleum Engmeers (SPE-PRMS)
Reserve quantittes in 2008 were estimated by the Group’s
petroleum engineers in accordance with the same rules A
summary of the Company's reserve position relative to
2008 1s set out In the tables above

Dunlin Area

Based on our expenence of power supply rehability from
Brent in 2009, both GCA and Fairfield engineers have taken
a more conservative view of water imjection volumes in the
short term which reduces the production forecast This has
had a proportionately larger impact on Proven Reserves
Fairfield plans to import fuel gas from late 2011, making
Dunhin seff-sufficent in power generation and removing the
unrehability of Brent power supply

Farrfield engineers and GCA agreed to build the benefits of
this development in over several years rather than include
an immediate impact which had been the previous
assumption GCA takes a more conservative view than
Fairfield engineers on the reserves developed from the
Dunlin platform dniling programme, especially in the case of
Proven Reserves Reserves are now Included for the
development of the Skye discovery following a work
programme of geoscience and reservorr simulation

Clipper South

The 2008 Reserves were subject to independent audit by
RPS Energy and were based on the 100% equity which
Farrfield held at the time Dunng 2009, 50% was farmed
down to RWE in return for a partial development carry

RWE has taken over Operatership of Chpper South and
completed its own reserves evaluaton and a revised
development plan based on 5 production wells rather then
the 6 wells in the Farfield plan Reserves per well are
similar in the RWE and Fairfield estimates

GCA has taken a more conservalive view of the
effectiveness of the frac programme than Fairfield, RPS or
RWE

Crawford

Crawford has seen a small increase in reserves This I1s due
to improvements in the development plan ansing from the
2009 work programme The significant change 1s moving
from hydraulic fracturing to multlateral dniling in order to
maximize reservor contact with the well bore This
approach, combmned with more definition on costs has
improved the economi¢ duration of the development

Darwin

Darwin 1s the provisional name for the development of the
southern end of the North West Hutton field acquired from
BP and the UKCS 25th Round acreage to the south of the
field, both acquired in 2009 Dunng 2009 an extensive
subsurface work programme was completed and a Draft
Field Development Plan wntten resulting in the assignation
of reserves to the first phase of development by GCA

Staffa

The 2009 work programme on Staffa has generated a much
improved knowledge of the subsurface expectations of the
redevelopment, and as a resut GCA has assigned
Reserves to the development
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Financial review

The past year was an important penod in the development
of the Company with 2009 being the first full year managing
Farrfield's producing assets following the acquisition of the
Dunlin Area in Apnl 2008 As well as significant progress
being made with the Dunln assefs, a number of our
evaluatton assets took significant steps towards first gas
and ol Although operating performance did not reach
internal targets with constraints to production, revenues
have been well supported by treasury decisions taken in
mid-2008 and will continue to provide revenues over the
next 12 months should ol pnces remain at current levels

Over the past twelve months, the ol pnce has nsen
significantly, beginning the year near $35/bbl and closing
around $78/bbl The increased pnce reflects improved
fundamentals with supply side discipline from OPEC and a
continuaticn of strong demand from non-OECD countnes
such as China Leading forecasters indicate ol pnces will
continue to increase over 2010 and 2011 as the global
economy recovers The pound strengthened against the US
Dollar dunng 2009, moving from $1 4454 to $1 6135 The
weakemng dollar had a negative mmpact on results as
revenues are generated in dollars, whilst costs are
predominantly stering denominated

Operating performance

The Company generated earmings before interest and tax
(EBIT) of $25 milion in 2009 compared to $26 million m
2008 This result was impacted by higher operating costs
associated with the imtiat running of the Dunlin ‘A’ platform,
an extended shutdown penod and the effect of the weaker
US dollar Production costs were $55/bbl

Qur swap and put-option contracts with a fixed weighted-
average ol pnce of $116/bbl covered 99% of our production
for the year and generated strong operating revenues
despite ol prices beginning the year in the $30s We have
reported hedging revenues of $64 million but thts amount
excludes $28 million from our ineffective put options flowing
through the fair value gain and loss on denvatives in the
Income Statement Total hedging revenues recewved for
the year totalled $92 million Additonal detaill relating to
financial instruments 1s disclosed in Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Overhead costs were successfully managed to below 2008
levels in spite of the currency pressures and additional
professional services and consultancy fees incurred dunng
the year The focus on strong cost control will continue and
has been supported by the implementaton of a new
accounting system over the early months of 2010

Over the course of the year, the Company has been
actively managing the asset portfolioc and as a result there
have been several non-recumng revenues and expenses
In March the Mabel asset was sold to BP for $3 5 million
generating a gain on sale of $2 9 million

In July, Farrfield successfully farmed-out a 50% interest in
Clipper South to RWE in exchange for a carried interest of
on-going costs capped at £20 millon as well as the
reimbursement of £3 million of historical costs As a result,
our share of the incurred expenditure up to the cap will
remain off our statement of financtal position

In July, Fairfield entered into a joint venture parbally
divesttng our interests in the Maureen Area to Challenger
Minerals and Endeavour Energy
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Key Performance Indicators

Area Target 2009 2008
HSE LTIFR per 200,000 hrs 00 083
Operatlonal Net production 17m 11m
Financial Cash operating cost per boe $55 $44

Over the following months, an appraisal well was
unsuccessfully dnlled in North East Maureen and was
plugged and abandoned A subsequent review of this asset
has resulted in the deciston to fully impair the carrying value
of the Maureen Area As a consequence, total net
exploration and impairment wnte-offs of $14 million have
been recorded with $7 2 million directly related to the North
East Maureen dnlling Fairfield’s capital outlay, however,
was imited to $1 milhion with offseting income received
from an advance agreement entered into with the Gemini
Qil and Gas fund tin exchange for a royalty interest in future
praoduction Gemiri camed the nsk of a dry-well

Net finance costs

The Company 1s well funded, pnncipally supported by a
group of private equity companies who have contnbuted
$300 million Debt financing was provided by subsidianes of
Mitsubishi Corporation, to support the Dunlin acquisition In
2008 in the amount of $92 milklon The pnvate equity
funding 1s quasi-equity but based on certain features has
been classified as debt {(Subordinated Preference
Certificates and Preference Shares) for the purpose of IFRS
reporting Our funding sources have resulted in finance
charges of $70 millton for 2009, up from $41 milkion tn 2008,
as a result of the additional draw down of SPC funding and
an $18 million charge resulting from an earhier anticipated
conversion date associated with an Intial Public Offering
In the current year we have also incurred net farr value
losses on denvatives of $28 million due to the increase In
the il pnce over the past year

Operating cash flows

The Group generated operating cash flows of $79 milkon
before investing and financing actmities, up 371% from the
$17 million generated in 2008

Investing and financing activities, net dabt

The Company invested $182 milion in net capital activities
in 2009, pnnopally supporting the Dunlin Area with an
nvestment of $149 milhon and expenditure of $34 milion on
our evaluation assets Of the evaluation spend, $19 million
related to the acquisition of the North West Hutton asset
acquired in September 2009 A further $6 milkon i1s payable
in future payments, with approximately $2 milllon payable in
July 2010 and the remamder expected in the last quarter of
2011

2009 saw a net financing inflow of $82 million (2008 $162
milkon) with Mitsubishi financing obtained in the latter
penod to fund the Dunlin acquisition The 2009 inflow was
generated pnncipally from $100 milllon »n investor cash
calls offset by a $4 milion reduction in the revolving credit
facity to Mitsubishi Corporation and $14 milion pad in
interest and guarantee fees associated with all debt
facilities

Net debt was relatively consistent at $569 million at the end
of the year compared to $40 million twelve months earler

Dunng the course of the year, the Company has continued
to ook at funding altematives to develop our assets This
process will continue in 2010, including evaluating an option
to take the Company to the market
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Corporate governance

The Board s committed to the highest standards of
corporate govermnance and believes that such standards are
essential to overall business integrity and performance As
a private company the Company I1s not required to comply
with the pnnciples of the Combined Code on Cormporate
Govemance, however, the Board has taken steps such
that, where appropnate, the Company comples with
aspects of the Combined Code

Board of Directors Private equity house

Chnistopher Alan Wright Not applicable
Mark Francis McAliister Not applicable
Simon Wilham Caines Eyers® 4D

Peter Kagan* Warbug Pincus
Dawid Kneger* Warbug Pincus
David L Pearce* Not applicable
Jeff van Sleenbergen* Kern Energy
Andrew Paterson* Not applicable
Fredenck Pensonby* Not applicable

(resigned 31/7/09)

* denotes Non-Executive Directors

The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company's
Articles of Association {Articles) The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive are separate

Board meetings

The Beard holds regular scheduled meetings throughout
the year Unscheduled supplementary meetings also take
place as and when necessary Dunng 2009, the Company
had four scheduled meetings and two unscheduled
supplementary meetings The Board continually monitors
the development of the Group’s strategy and associated
business plans and budgets Performance 1s reported
through monthly reports and at scheduled meetings while
the annua! business plan and budget are discussed,
reviewed and approved at the December meeting

Directors who were unable to attend specific Board or
committee meetings reviewed the relevant Board bnefing
packs and provtded their comments to the Chairman of the
Board or committee, as appropnate

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

In accordance with the Articles, the Company has granted a
deed of indemnity, to the extent permitted by law, to each
Director and officer of the Company The Company also
maintains directors’ and officers’ habilty insurance

Board committees

The Board has delegated authonty to its committees to
carry out certain tasks as defined n each commitee's
respective terms of reference

All of the Non-Executive Directors serve on one or more of
the Audit, Remuneration and HSE Committees Minutes of
committee meetings are made availlable to all Directors on
a tiimely basis and the chaimmen of each committee provide
updates to the Board at subsequent Board meetings

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are Simon Eyers
{Charman, replacing Fred Ponsonby who resigned as a
Director dunng 2009), David Pearce, David Kneger and Jeff
van Steenbergen The key function of the Audit Committee
1s to review the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporing and intemal control polictes together with the
procedures for the identffication, assessment and reporting
of nsks The Committee 1s authonsed by the Board to

« Montor the integnty of the Company's financial
statements, including a review of the significant
financial reporting jJudgments contained theren,

+ Review the Company's mternal financial controls,
intemal control and nsk management systems, and
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+ Establsh and oversee the Company's relattonship with
the extemnal auditors, includng monitonng therr
independent status

Dunng the year the Committee met on four occasions The
Committee has met pnvately with the extemal auditors
dunng the course of these meetings

In accordance with International Standard on Auditing (UK
& Ireland) 260 and Ethical Statement 1 issued by the
Accounting Practices Board, and as a matter of best
practice, the external auditors have confirmed their
independence as auditors of the Company, in a letter
addressed to the Directors

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Peter
Kagan (Chawrman), Dawid Pearce, Simon Eyers and Andrew
Paterson Fred Ponsonby stood down from the Committee
in 2009 Andrew Paterson 1s considered independent (as
was Lord Ponsonby), the other members of the committee
are all mvestor directors The Remuneration Committee s
responsible for determining the remuneration of the
executive directors and sentor employees and normally
meets twice a year

The Committee acts within the agreed terms of reference in
implementing the remuneration policy The remit of the
Committee includes

¢ Determinaton and agreement of the remuneration
policy for executive directors and senior employees,

» Consideration and determination of total compensation
for executve directors and senior employees In
accordance with the remuneration policy,

« Approval of the pnnciples of, and the targets contained
within, the Company's annual bonus plan,

+ Approval of the design and structure of the Company's
long-term incentive plan and the corresponding awards
to be made In accordance with the plan, and

e Determination of the remainder of the remuneration
package mncluding pension arangemenis and other
non-cash benefits for executive directors and senior
employees

The Remuneration Committee met once in 2009 to review
the 2009 Comorate Performance Contract, to review and
approve the revised 2009 basic salary provisions for all
staff, to review and approve the 2008 performance bonus
award recommendations for all staff and to approve benefits
enhancements for all staff Dunng the course of the year the
Commuittee was kept regularly informed by Executve
Management on matters ncluding orgamisational
development, senior employee performance and
organisational capacity It was asked to approve, out of
committee, a mid-year share options award to staff

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Committee

The members of the HSE Committee are David Pearce
(Chairman), David Kneger and Simon Eyers Members of
the committee are all investor directors

The key purpose of the HSE Committee 1s based upon
Leadership Actions For Directors & Board Members
Guidance issued by the Institute of Directors and CBIl on
29th October 2007, and 1s specifically enhanced in order to
make reference to the management of asset integnty and
major hazard nsk management its charter s to,

» Examine whether the health, safety and environmental
policies reflect Fairfield’s current pnonties, plans and
targets,

s+ Examine whether asset mntegnty, major hazard nsk
management and other health, safety and
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environmental management
effectively reported to the board,

+ Report heaith, safety and environmental shortcomings,
and the effect of all relevant board and management
decisions,

» Decide actions to address any weaknesses and a
system to monitor their implementatton,

« Consider immediate reviews In the light of major
shortcomings or events

Dunng 2009 there were four meetings where the key topics

discussed were

* The Dunlin Safety Case — Review & Revision (status)

and Dnling Addendum (status)

Dunlin Cntical Documentation Review Plan (status)

Asset Integnty Management (Status)

The Role and Reports of the Venfication Body

The status of environmental incidents

A review of the 2009 Corporate KPls and Targets

Regular review of the Corporate Risk Register

A review of the Dunln Flare Header incident of 10

Apnl

A review of the Dunlin ‘Safety Culture’

» A review of the Dunlin Enforcement Notices 1ssued by
Regulatory Authonties

systems have been

Strategic risks

Risk Description and mitigation strategy

Reserve
replacement

Future cail and gas producton s dependent on
dentifying and obtaining nghts to new reserves and
bringing those reserves into ol and gas production
The Group mubgates the depleton of existing
reserves by developing existng exploraton and
evaluations assets and assessing opportunities n
the rmarket to acquire new nghts as they anse via
license rounds and merger and acquisiion activity

Farrfield s a North Sea specialist focused on
understanding the subsurface of dentfied
hydrocarbon resources better than its competitors
The Group 1s subject to the political, regulatory and
environmental nisks related to this area

Geographical
area

Human
resources

Farrfield recognises that future success requires it to

retain, develop and attract highly skilled personnel

To meet this objective, the Group

e Assesses s remuneraton packages against
external benchmarks,

« QOffers an employee share option plan, and

+» Prowvides annual and spot bonuses following the
achievement of individual performance contracts
and/or excellent performance

Operational nsks

Risk Description and mitigation strategy

Production Existing production flows entrely through the
Dunitn Area assets via the Brent System and s
exported from Sullom Voe Terminal As all
production is processed from one platform, ol
revenues would cease immedately shoulkd a
catastrophic disaster occur to the infrastructure of
the Dunlin area To mitigate this nsk, Fairfield has
obtained business interruption insurance and seeks
opportunites to add additional producton faciibes

Health,
safety and
environment

The Group operates in a dangerous and hazardous
industry The Company has committed to meet
international  health, safety and environmental
standards HSE performance is reported monthly
to executive management and a sub-committee of
the Board The Company recognises the
reputational nsk it faces in the event of an HSE
disaster

Informaton IT 15 cncal in carrying out the business's day-to-
technology day activhes The Group regularly reviews its
(Im) business continuity and IT disaster recovery plans

to minimise nsks to its knowledge base
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In additon, the Committee also considered the
organisatienal development of the Fanfield professional HSE
function, and reported regularly to the Board, including an
annual HSE Performance Report and a report on the
development of Corporate KPIs for HSE

Risk management and internal control

The Board regards the identfication and assessment of
nsks, together with the mitgating intemal controls, to be
fundamental to achieving the Group's strategic objectives
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system
of internal control and nsk management which 1s designed
to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of faillure to achieve
its objectives and can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss
As part of the management process the Group has
identified the key nsks facing the Group and those nsks with
a high level of potental impact and occurrence are
summansed In the Risk Register which 1s reviewed by the
Board on a quarterly basis

Fairfield, as an appraiser, developer and operator in the
North Sea oil and gas industry faces a vanety of nsks The
nature of these nsks may be strategic, operational andfor
financial  Many of these nsks are outside the Group’'s
control Key nisks the Group faces include those set out n
the table below

Financial risks

Risk Description and mitigation strategy

Qi price | Fairfield's pnimary source of revenue 1s from the sale

of ol products The Fairfield Commodity Price

Hedging Policy has been designed to help manage

adverse price volatity by entering nto commodity

hedges The Company adopts hedge accountng

prnnciples in accordance with IAS 39 The Group's

commodity hedging contracts are held by AA-

creditworthy counterpartes

The functonal currency of the Company 15 US

dollars As an operator in the UK, the Group incurs

significant operatng and capital expenditure

denominated in Stering  The Group's Foreign

Exchange Policy seeks to mitigate this exposure by

+« Contractng in US$ where there 1s no cost
disadvantage, and

« Enabling management to forward hedge a
propertion of the currency exposure using forward
contracts and options

The Group transacts with various parties and as a

consequence faces third party credt nsk  To

mitigate this nisk, Fairfield contracts with recognised,

creditworthy parties

Key exposures anse as a result of the Group's joint
venture relabonshups These relationships are
governed by the terms of joint operating agreements
which set out terms that minimise nsk If one party
defaults Where the Group 1s the operator, funding 1s
made in advance The Group may have significant
cash balances ansing from capital calls and its
operating activities at any particular tme Cash 1s
maintaned on deposit with the Royal Bank of
Scotland

Liquudity | The nature of the Group's business exposes it to
and wregular cash flows To manage hquidity and
funding | funding shertfalls, the Group prepares an annual
budget and quarterly forecasts which are
subsequently measured against actual cashflows in
its monthly management reporing to Executve
Management and its equity investors

Equity funding 15 provided wa Subocrdinated
Preference Certficates and Preference Shares
Before additonal funding 1s obtained, Board
approval 1s required The Board regularly assesses
the Group's future capital requirements and seeks
appropnate finance to meet its needs For financial
Le%orhng purposes these instruments are treated as
ebt

Foreign
currency

Credit
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Directors’ remuneration report

Introduction

As a private company, Fairfield Energy 1s not required to
adhere to the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations
2002 and the requirements of the 2008 Combined Code on
Corporate Govemance, but has where possible followed the
relevant pnnciples

Remuneration Policy

The Group's remuneraticn policy 1s to provide appropnate
levels of remuneration to attract, motivate and retain high
calbre Executive Directors and senior employees capable
of achieving corporate objectives, and to encourage and
appropnately reward supenor performance in 2 manner that
enhances shareholder value Accordingly, the Group has
established a remuneration policy that ensures there i1s a
clear Iink to business strategy and a close alignment with
shareholder interests and ams to ensure that Executive
Directors and senior employees are rewarded fairly for thetr
contnbution to business performance Consequently, the
Group takes account of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and sentor employees of comparable companies

The elements of remuneration for Executive Directors and
senior employees are basic salary, annual bonus, non-cash
benefits, pension paymenis and participation in the
Company’s long-term incentive scheme These elements of
remuneration are descnbed in detall below

Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Basic Salary
Basic salanes are based on market conditions, and take
into account the scope and responsibilities associated with
the position, as well as the skills, expenence and
performance of the Executive Director Basic salanes are
reviewed annually with effect from 1 January and set by
reference to external benchmarking data for other similar
companies engaged in ol and gas explaration and
production  The comparator group 1s chosen with regard
to
« Companies in the same industry,
* The size of the Company including turnover, profit and
the number of employees,
The diversity and complexity of the business, and
+  The business growth and expansion

Following a review from 1 January 2009, the basic salary of
each Executive Director 1s as follows

Executive Diractor 2009 Basic salary % Increase from 2008
Mark Francis McAllister £250,000 25%
Chnstopher Alan Wright £134 000 0%

In setting basic salanes, the Committee’s general policy s
to keep percentage increases broadly in lne with those
across the rest of the Group and to continue to ensure that
a significant proportion of executive remuneration 1s inked
to performance However, account was taken of the
comparative data within the Mercer Oil & Gas Exploration
and Production Survey that showed that the basic salary for
the Chief Executive Officer was 33% below the median
level
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Consequently, the Committee determined that his basic
salary should be increased to £250,000 to achieve better
alignment with the relevant peer group The salary for the
Chairman was unaltered in 2009

2009 Annual Bonus Plan

Each Executive Director 1s enhttled to participate in the
annual bonus plan In 2009 neither the Chairman nor the
CEO participated in the annual bonus plan

The Group constders that the annual bonus 1s an important
part of the remuneration package where associated
performance targets reflect the key dnvers for value
creation and growth in shareholder value

Bonus awards are intended to encourage supenor individual
performance whilst fostenng effective teamwork and
maintaining a clear focus on corporate business objectives
Individual bonus awards are based on

» Assessment of delivery versus ohjectives contamed
within the individual performance contract,

* Assessment of individual contribution to the success of
others, and

* Indmvdual contnbution to corporate deliverables

The following table details the vanous elements of the
annual bonus plan and the manner in which this translates
into the corresponding individual bonus awards

Delivery of | Team Contribution | Corporate
Performance {TC) Daliverables {CD)
contract {DPC)

Delivery of all aspects | The Team | The Corporate
of the individual | Contnbution multipher | Deliverables multiplier
Performance Contract | recognises Individual | recognises  material
equates 1o a bonus of | contnbuton to  the | contnbution to  the

20% of annual basic | success of others in | achilevement of the

salary (DPC = 020) | achieving their | corporate objectives
subject to the Team | objectives This | This may take the
Contnbution and | multiplier s on a scale | form of increased
Corporate Deliverables | between 0 and 2 A | reserves in an asset,
multiphers mulliplier of 1 apples | reduction in driling
Exceptional when an indvidual | costs, achieving more
performance beyond | shows the required | favourable tax status
the abjectives of the | commitment and | for a development or
Performance Contract | performance In | significant reducton in
may lead to a bonus of | helping others o | G&A  This muluplier
up 0 30% of annual | achieve therr | Is on a scale between
basic salary cobjectives 1and 2

Individual bonus payments are capped at 50% of annual
basic salary In the event that the sum of all indmidual
bonuses exceeds 30% of the total payroll for the year then
all bonuses wil be reduced pro-rata or 1n exceptional
circumstances the Committee will be requested to exceed
the limit

Benefits

The Company will either contnbute 17% of basic salary to
the personal pension plans of the executive drectors or
alternatively, will pay the sum as income, subject to
deduction of income tax and Natonal Insurance
Contnbutions In addition, the Group's executive directors
receive a range of benefits including 25 days of annual
leave, private medical insurance, pnvate dental insurance,
personal accident insurance, group iIncome protection and
Wfe assurance benefits The Group also reimburses the
Executive Directors tn respect of all expenses reasonably
incurred by them in the normal performance of their duties
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Summary of Actual Remuneration

A summary of the Directors’ remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 1s provided in the table
below

2009 2008
$000 $000
Salaries 77 97
Bonuses (2) 75
Social secunty costs 96 114
Pension costs 87 63
Insurance (medical and life) g 4
Share-based payments 619 261
1,505 1,314
Defined contributions
schemes
Number of directors claiming 1 1
benefits

The remuneration of each Diwector, excluding tong-term,
share-based incentve awards, for the year ended 31
December 2009 compared with 2008 1s set out in the table
below

Summary of Directors’ Remuneration

Feesasic Bonus  Benefit 2009 2008
salary Incash  inkind Tatal Total
i $000 5000 $000 $000 | S000
M F McAllister 1 391 - 5 396 l 446
C A Wright 246 - - 246 358
Executive Director |
| 637 - 5 842 804
Total ‘
S W C Eyers - - - - -
P Kagan . - - - -
D Kneger X - - - - | .
DL Pearce ’ 3 - - 3 34
A Paterson ! |
(appomnted 1/12/08) L - - 3 | 2
F M T Ponscenby . 36
(resigned 31/07/08) 13 - - 18,
J van Steenbergen - - - - .
Non-Executive i |
Director Total 80 N ’ 80 1 72
Director ! \
Remuneration i ni - 5 72 | 876
Total ! [

The Chieef Executive Officer also received a pension
contnbution in 2008 of $67,000 (2008 $37,000)
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Summary of Directors’ Interests in
Optlon

Shares Held Under

Awards to

Jvan Steenbergen -

Granted Lapsed
Date of Grant 3 December ' during 2008 In 2009
2008
$000 | $000 $000
M F McAllister '
$5 options 84 145 .
$12 options 60 75 -
144 220 .
I
C AWnght
55 options 66 . 160 -
$12 options 60 ! 80 .
126 240 -
S W C Eyers - - -
I
P Kagan - | - -
D Krieger - - .
. See note
DL Pearce below ! - -
A Paterson (appointed _ | . .
1/12/08) I
F M T Ponsonby N . .
(resigned 31/07/09) |
|

* David Pearce has been awarded a future cash bonus in
heu of and equivalent to 64,000 share options




Fairfield Energy Limited Annuatl report for the year ended 31 December 2009

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present faily the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that penod In prepanng those financial statements, the
Directors are required to

. Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. Present information, including accounting polictes, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information,

. Provide additional disclosures when comphlance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Group's financial posttion and financial performance, and

. State that the Group has complied with IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained
In the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements and, having a reasonable expectation that the
Group have adequate resources to continue in cperational existence for the foreseeable future, wil continue to adopt the
going ¢concem basis in prepanng the accounts

Having made the requisite enquines, so far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined
by Section 418(3) of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Group's auditors are unaware, and the directors have taken
all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Group's auditors are aware of that information

Mark McAllister
Chief Executive Officer

Date ‘i" -rmt.- 2010
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Independent auditor’s report

TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRFIELD ENERGY LIMITED

We have audited the Group financial statements of Farfield Energy Limited for the year ended 31 December 2009
which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes 1 to 34 The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their
preparation 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compames Act 2006 OQur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responstbility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a
bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibikties Statement set out on page 12, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view OQur
responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards
on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reascnable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
aerror This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimion the Group financial statements

* Give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of its loss for the year
then ended,

» Have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
+» Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opimon on other matter prescnibed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given In the Directors’ Report for the financial year, for which the Group financial
statements are prapared, 1s consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion

+ Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
*  We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Fairfield Energy Limited for the year ended
31 December 2009

Codl

Ken Willamson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst &Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Lendon

L|' Tane Aolo
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December

) R Restated*
2009 | 2008
Notes $000 $000
Revenue 6 174,644 i 103,106
Cost of sales {127,918} {682,990}
Gross profit 46,726 40,116
Administrative expenses {17,307} (17,696)
Gan on disposal of intangible assets 20 2,875 . -
Net other operating income N ) 8,377 4631
Exploration and impairment losses 7 (12.954) (838)
Operating profit | 24717 | 26,213
| I
|
(Loss) / Gain on denvatives Tiv ! (27,514) 42,346
Finance income v | 5,001 ‘ 1,516
Finance costs v (84,421) (66, 944)
{Loss) / Profit before tax (82,217) | 313
i §
Income tax benefit / (expense) 8 18,164 ' (26,225)
j
Loss after tax {64,053) } (23,094)
h 1
Earnings per share 9 I
basic, loss for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent {827 85) ($1004)
diluted, loss for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent N _ ($27 85) J (31004)

" Certaan numbers shown above do not correspond to the 2008 financlal statements as a result of retrospective adjustments and reclassifications set out
in Note 4
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December

r Restated*
| 2009 ! 2008
! $000 | $000
I |
Loss for the period ' {64,053) (23,004)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on the transtation of foreign operations ' 4,933 , (12,218)
Fair value {loss) / gain on cash flow hedges {17,064) ' 125,329
Recycling of effective cash flow hedges I {64,155) | -
Income tax benefit / (expense) refating to cash flow hedges 40,610 (62,665)
(Loss) / gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax : (40,609} 62,664
Other comprehensive {loss) / income, net of tax | (35,676) 50,448
! ]
Total comprehensive / {loss) Income [ {99,729) Y 27,354

* Certain numbers shown above do not correspond 1o the 2008 financial statements as a result of retrospective adjustments and reclassifications set out

in Note 4
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December d A Restated*
| 2009 | 2008
Notes $000 | $000
Non-current assets | ‘
Qil and gas properlies 10 ‘ 487,983 ' 415,240
Exploratron and evaluation assets 1" ‘ 102,951 68,803
Property, plant and equipment 1z 8a1 1,277
Goodwill and other intangible assets 13 10,440 } 13,800
Investments 15 2,405 | 2,881
Denvative financial instruments 17b 2,492 | 105,044
‘ 607,162 | 607,045
Current assets | 1
Inventory 21 . 2,312 2,800
Trade and other recerables 8 12,134 ‘ 17,448
Prepayments and accrued income 19 43,875 ‘ 18,586
Denvatwe financial instruments 17b 64831 93,469
Cash and short-term deposits 2 . 35,531 | 53,590
158,683 | 185,393
i
Assets held for sale 20 - 509
i
Total assets ’ 765,845 | 793,547
Current liabilitles l
Trade and other payables 23 5814 } 14,273
Deferred income and accruais 24 46,076 | 32,672
Loans and borrowings 26 f 984,349 | 93,355
Provisions 25 2,117 ! 4,426
148,356 ! 144,726
Non-current llabllitles , {
Subordinated preference certificates 2h 1 350,671 | 202,159
Preference shares 2m 49,319 | 46,593
Decommissioning provision 25 283,834 | 318,829
Provisions 25 5,939 -
Deferred tax iabilty 8iv 43,792 | 102,565
Denvative financial instruments 17b | 2,788 i -
; 736,343 | 670,146
i
Total liabilitles 884,699 814,872
{
NET (LIABILITIES}) | {118,854) ]I {21,325)
Equity I
Founder shares 28 | 23 23
Founder share premium 23 | 188 . 198
Cash flow hedge reserve 28 ! 22,055 | 62,664
Foreign currency translation reserve 28 {7,898) \[ (12,331)
Retained deficit 28 | (133239) | (71,379)
TOTAL EQUITY i {118,854) | (21,325)

* Certaln numbers shown above do not corespond to the 2008 financial statements as a result of retrospective adjustments and reclassifications set out
in Note 4

Mark McAllister
Chief Executive Officer

P b Tine 2olo
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December

Foreign
Founder Cash flow currency !
Founder share hedge  transiation Retained |
Notes shares premium reserve reserve deficit Total .
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 '
At 1 January 2009 (as previousty reported) 23 198 62,664 (12,831) (73,098} {23,044)
Retrospective adjustment - - - - 1,719 1,719
At 1 January 2009 {restated) 23 198 82,664 (12,831) (71,379) (21,325) '
|
Total comprehensive income - - {40,609) 4,933 (64,053) (99,729}
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity i
Share-based payment transactions 30 - - - - 2,200 2,200 i
|
Balance at 31 December 2009 28 23 198 22,055 (7,898) {133,232) {118,854) ]
for the year ended 31 December {restated”}
Foreign
Founder  Cash flow currency
Founder share hedge translation  Retalned
Notes shares premlum reserve reserve deficit Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2008 23 198 - (615) (49,754) (50,148)
Total comprehensive iIncome (as previously reported) - - 62,664 (12,216) {24,813) 25,635
Retrospective adjusiment, net of tax 4 - - - - 1,719 1,719
Total comprehensive income (restated) - - 62,664 (12,216) {23,094) 27,354
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Share-based payment transactions 30 - - - - 1,469 1,469
Balance at 31 December 2008 28 23 198 62,664 {12,831)  {71,379) (21,325)

* Certain numbers shown above do not cerrespand to the 2008 financlal statements as a result of retrospective adjustments and reclassifications set out

in Note 4
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December

[ 1 Restated"
| 2009 | 2008
Notes | $000 $000

!

Operating actlvities ; :
(Loss) / Profit before tax * (82,217) 3,131

Adustments for I
SPC interest expense and unwinding costs 2n 50,954 30,339
Farr value adjustment of denvatives 55,426 (42,3486)
Discount unwind 25 | 13,454 ! 8,414
Depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairment ‘ 50,164 | 15,785
Gain on disposal of intangibles ‘ (2,891) : -
Share based payments ‘ 2,200 | 1,489
Net finance costs 15,594 | (7,768)

Working capital adjustments ) |
{Increase) / decrease In trade and other receivables 5314 (5,691)
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments and accrued income ‘ {25,043) (8,927)
(increase) / decrease in inventory 256 (30)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables ? (7.577} (6,145)
increase f (decrease) i deferred income and accruals ' 4,859 28,400
Increase / (decrease) in provisions \ {349) (796)
Neot cash inflow from operating activitles I 79,244 i 16,837

l T

Investing activities !

Proceeds from the sale of intangible assets i 3,500 -
Finance revenue ' 411 ! 1,408
Expenditure on o1l and gas assets™ ! {148,844) ] (110,280)
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (1,081) | {1,238)
Expenditure on evaluation and expioration assets | {33,500) ; (41,695)
Purchase of denvatives (2,8668) : (27,582)
Net cash outflow from Investing activitles {182,160) ‘\ (149,297}

| I

Financing activities | }
Proceeds from 1ssue of preference shares I 2,728 ‘ 5,604
Proceeds from 1ssue of SPCs I 97,558 ‘ 74,804
Proceeds from bormowings | 70,000 . 121,560
Repayment of borrowings . (74,307) (25,000)
Interest paid | (13,623) | (9,505)
Transaction costs (Faciliies A, B and C)} - {5,800)
Net cash Inflow from financing activitles | 82,354 161,663

i
{Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents ! (20,562) ° 29,203

I
Net foreign exchange difference 2,503 | (3.669)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the penod ' 53,500 - 28,058

| |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 32 ! 35,531 | 53,580

* Certaln numbers shown above do not comrespond to the 2008 financlal statements as a resuit of retrospective adjustments and rectassifications
setout in Note 4

“*In 2008, $70 2 million ¢f the total $110 3 miliion related to the acquisdion of Dunlin Area assets acquired as part of a business combination See
Note 5 for additional details
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

a) Reporting entity

Farfield Energy Limited 15 prncipally a holdng and service
company for the Fairfield Energy Group The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December were authonsed for
1ssue In accordance with a resoluton of the directors on 29 Apnl
2010 The Group i1s a hmited company tncorparated and domiciled
in England and Wales The registered office 1s located at Ash
House, Stames, Middlesex, United Kingdom

b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Unmion (EU} and as applied i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 The accountng policies
adopted are consistent with those apphed in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, other than
those detalled in section c¢)} Certain prior year adjustments were
dentfied durning the year These are set out in Note 4 Other
reclassifications of pnor year disclosures have been made to
increase comparability and understandabiity of the financial
statements

¢) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS}) and adopted by the EU

d) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cast convention except for certain financial assets and habilites
that have been measured at fair value

e} Presentation and functional currencies

The conschdated financial statements are presented n United
States dollars, which is alse the parent company’s functional
currency Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that funchonal currency

The financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand
(3000) unless stated otherwise

f) Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements compnse the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidranes as at 31 December
2009 Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which
control 1s transferred to the Group, and cease to be consolidated
from the date at which conirol 1s transferred out of the Group
Control exists when an entity has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefit from its
activites The financial statements of the subsidianes are prepared
for the same reportng period as the parent company, using
consistent accountng policies All intra-group balances, income
and expenses, unrealised gains and losses and dividends resulting
from tntra-group transactions have been eiminated in full

g) Interestsin joint ventures

The Group's interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for
by recognising its proportionate share i assets and liabiities from
joint ventures, except where as operator Fairfield takes on the role
as independent confractor In these instances, receivables and
payables relating to jointly controlled operations are brought to
account on a gross basis Joint venture expenses and the Group's
entittement to producton are recognised on a prc rata basis
according to the Group's joint venture interest

h) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combmnations are accounted for using the purchase
method Contingent consideration 1s recogrised if, and only if, the
Group has a present obligation, the economic cutflow was more
likely than not and a relable eshmate s determmnable A
subsequent adjustment to the contingent consideration results in
an adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s mitially measured at cost being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group's net identfiable assets
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acquired and lizbilities assumed If this consideration is lower than
the far value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference 1s recogrised in profit and loss

After the bal recognitton, goodwll 15 assumed to have an
indefinite ife and 15 measured at cost less any accumulated
imparment losses For the purpose of imparrment, goodwill
acquired In a business combinabon 15, from the acquisiion date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generatng uruts that are
expected to benefit from the combinaton, rrespective of whether
other assets or habilites of the acquiree are assigned to those
units

Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit 1s disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of 1s included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gam or loss on disposal of the
operation Goodwill disposed of in this arcumstance 1s measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained

1)  Revenue recognition

O sales

Revenue from the sale of ol 1s recogmsed when the significant
nsks and rewards of ownerstup have been transferred to the
customer Revenue Is therefore recognised when volumes are
physically Wfted from Sullom Voe Termmmal The Group has
adopted the enttlements method of accounting for oil and gas
producton Due to the fact that the Group follows the entittement
basis, adjustments In respect of overlft (iftngs greater than
producton entttement) and underift (producton entitlement
greater than hiftings) are recorded against cost of sales at market
value Revenue earned under a lease or licence conferrng
ownership nghts to producton in which the Group has a working
interest with other producers, 1s recognised in earnings on the
basis of the Group's interest in the relevant lease or licence

Rendenng of services

Income received as operator from jomnt ventures is recognised on
an accruals basis in accordance with joint venture agreements and
15 included within ‘other operating income' in the consclidated
income staterment

I} Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactons n foregn currencies are inbally recorded by the
Group entites in therr funchonal currencies at the spot exchange
rate Monetary assets and labhtes denommnated in foreign
currencres are retranslated at the funchonal currency spot rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date

Group companies

The assets and habiites of foreign operatons are translated into
the presentation currency at the closing balance Statement of
Financial Positon dates and ther !ncome Statements are
translated at rates approxmating the monthly average The
exchange differences ansing on the translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income through the foreign currency
translaton reserve On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the Income Statement

The repayment of intercompany loans 1s neither planned nor
considered hkely n the foreseeable future Foreign exchange
differences ansing on the translation of parent company monetary
assets or habiites where repayment 1s considered neither planned
nor hkely are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, as part of the Company’'s net investment in the relevant
operation in accordance with 1AS 21

k) Evaluation, exploration assets and oil and gas properties
The Group follows a successful efforts accounting policy for ol and
gas assets The success or failure of each exploraton or appraisal
effort 1s assessed on a well-by-well basis

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Expenditure incurred prior to obtaming legal nghts to explore an
area 1s expensed mmediately to the Income Statement.
Exploration and evaluation expenditure associated with an
exploration well, tncluding acquisition costs related to exploration
and evaluaton actwvibes are nbally capitalised as intangible
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assets Certan expenditures such as geological and geophystcal
exploration costs are expensed If the prospects are subsequently
determined to be successful on completon of evaluation, the
relevant expenditure including fhcence acquistion costs are
capitalised as oll and gas assets If the prospects are subsequently
determined to be unsuccessful, the associated costs are expensed
in the penod in which that determination 1s made

The Group may enter into farm-in or farm-out arrangements where
it may introduce partners to share in the development of an asset
For transactions involving assets at the exploration and evaluation
phase, the Group adopts an accounting policy as permitted by
IFRS 6 such that the Group does not record any expenditure made
on Its behalf under a ‘carned interest’ and does not recognise a
gamn or less from any cash consideraton received The value of
the cash consideration 1s credited against costs previously
incurred Farmed-out ol and gas properties are accounted for In
accordance with 1AS 16

Ol and gas properties

Qil and gas propertes are camed at cost net of accumulated
depleton and include construchon, installation or completon of
production and nfrastructure faciittes such as pipelines and
platforms, capitalised borrowing costs, transferred exploration and
evaluation assets, development wells, and the cost of dismanting
and restorabon Subsequent capital costs, including major
maintenance, are included in the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated wath
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably Depreciation i1s charged on a unit of producticn
basis against proven and probable reserves

) Propsarty, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and any provisions for imparment, If any
Depreciaton s calculated on a straight-ine basis over the
estimated useful hife of the asset as follows

IT equipment 3 years
Furniture and fittngs 3 years
m) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost and
carmed net of accumulated depreciation Gains or losses ansing
from de-recogmbon of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Income Statement
when the asset is derecognised Depreciation 1s calculated on a
straight-ine basis over an estmated useful life of 3 years

n} Investments
Investments are mtially recognised at the cost of acquisition and
carned net of accumulated depreciation and any provistons for

impairment The assets are amortised based on units of
producton
0) Impairment of assets

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment in accordance wath the Group's accounting policy under
iFRS 6 Exploration and evaluaton assets are only assessed for
impanment where the facts and circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount
Indications that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its
recoverable amount include

. Substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation
actvities on the asset or group of assets is neither budgeted
nor planned,

s  The entity has decided to discontinue activittes on the asset or
group of assets as a result of failling to find commercially
viable quantties of hydrocarbons, and

» The entity has sufficient data indicating that the carrying
amount of the asset or group of assets 1s unlkely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale

O and gas assets

Ol and gas assets are evaluated each reportng penod to
determine whether there are any indications of impaiment If any
such indication exists, a formal estmate of the recoverable amount
15 performed and an impairment loss recognised to the extent that
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carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount The recoverable
amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) 1s measured at
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use A CGU
compnses the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from contnumng use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups thereof Possible indicators of
impairment include significant adverse changes in ol or gas
reserves and/or long-term oil or gas prices

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impamment annually or mere frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carnyng value
may be mparred Impawrment 15 determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU, or groups of CGU, to which the
goodwill relates Where the recoverable amount of the CGU, or
groups of CGU, is less than the carnang amount, an imparment
loss 1s recognised

Financial assets

A financial asset 1s assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there 1s any objective ewidence that 1t 1s imparred A
financial asset 1s considered to be 1mparred if objective evidence
Indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset

imparment reversais

Any impairments recognised to assets other than goodwll may be
reversed if the circumstances leading to the impairment no longer
exist or have decreased, by increasing the carrying value of the
asset to its recoverable amount This may not exceed the carryng
value that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no imparrment loss previously been recognised Imparments to
goodwill cannot be reversed In accordance with IAS

Further details of the Group's mpairment testing 1s disclosed in
Note 14

p} Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Dervative financial instruments

The Group uses denvative financial instruments such as swaps,
options, futures and forward contracts to hedge its risks associated
with commaodity price fluctuations Dernvatives assets and liabilities
are nhally recognised at far value on the date a derwvative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
farr value in hne with market fluctuatons The unrealised gain or
loss on remeasurement is immediately recognised in the Income
Statement, except where hedge accounting applies The farr values
of denvative financial instruments that are traded on an active
market are based on quoted market pnces at the balance sheet
date The far value of financial instruments not traded on an active
market 1s determined using appropnate valuation techmigues

Hedge accounting

When a derivative 1s designated as a hedge for accounting
purposes, the relationship between the denvative and the hedged
item is documented, as 15 its nsk management objectve and
strategy for undertaking the hedge transacton Also documented 1s
the assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the denvatives that are used in hedging transactions
have been, and will continue to be, highly effective in offsetting
changes m farr values or cash flows of hedged items

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as
cash flow hedges Cash flow hedges are those hedges that
miigate exposure to vanabmty in cash flows that s either
atinbutable to a particular nisk associated with a recognised asset
or hability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign
currency nisk in an unrecogrised firm commitment The effective
portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives are recognised in
equity in the hedging reserve The gain or loss relabng to any
ineffective portion 15 recognised i the Income Statement
immediately Amounts accumulated in equity are taken {o the
Income Statement in the periods when the hedged tem affects
income, for Instance, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes
place

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires, no longer qualfies for hedge accounting or 1s terminated
At that pomt in tme, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity remans m equity untl the
forecasted transaction occurs
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q) Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial
Position compnse cash at bank and on hand, restncted cash
holdings (cash held in joint ventures and escrow accounts) and
short-term deposits wath an onginal matunty of three months or
less For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

r) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewables, including recewvables from related
partes, are imbally recogmised at farr value and subsequently
measured at amortsed cost less an allowance for uncoflectable
amounts Collectability and imparment are assessed on a regular
basis Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are
credited against other expenses in the Income Statement

s) Inventories

Inventones include consumable supplies and maintenance spares
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost 15 determined on a weighted average basis and mcludes
direct costs and an appropnate porton of fixed and vanable
overheads where applicable Inventones determmed to be obsolete
or damaged are wnitten down to net realisable value

t} Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale s highly probable
and the asset or disposal group 1s avallable for immediate sale in
its present condition

u) Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings represent amounts drawn under the Group's
working capital loan facilites, classified according to the length of
tme remaining under the respective facility Loans are mitally
measured at farr value less directly attnbutable transaction costs
After initial recognition, interest-beaning loans are subsequently
measurad at amortsed cost using the effective interest method

Following repayment of the Mitsubishi loans (Facility A and B),
there will be an ongoing obligation to pay royaltes in respect of the
Dunlin Areas At inception of the loan, royalties were deemed to
be attached to Facility B This loan 1s accounted for at amortised
cost whereby the discount 1s applied throughout the life of the loan
At each reporting period, the Group reassess future cash flows
associated with the repayment which leads to value changes that
are required to be taken to the income statement Refer to Note 17
for impact on income statement

v} Provisions and contingencies

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructve) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that
an outflow of resources embeodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obhgation and a rehable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation If the effect of the tme value
of money I1s matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the nisks specific to the
hability Where discounting 1s used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost

A contingent tability 1s disclosed where the existence of an
obligation will only be confirmed by future events or where the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably except where
the contingent hability results as part of a business combination
Continent abiities dentfied as part of a business combination are
recorded in the consolidated financtal statements at its fair value
Contingent assets are not recogmised but disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits 15 probable

Decommussioning habiiities

Liabilties for decommissioming costs are recognised when the
Group has an obhigaton to dismantle and remove a facility or an
item of plant and to restore the site on which it 1s located, and when
a rehable estmate of that habiity can be made The amount
recognised (s the present value of the estmated future expenditure
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determined in accordance with local conditions and requirements
The unwinding of the discount 15 expensed as ncurred and
recognised in the income statement as a finance cost The
estmated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropnate

On recogruton of a lhabity, a decommissiorung asset 15 also
recognised and included within ol and gas assets The
decommissioning asset s amorbsed using the umit of production
method, based on proven and probable reserves

w) Subordinated Preference Certificates and

convaertible preference shares

The Group i1ssues financial instruments referred to as investment
stnps These nstruments are requred to be accounted for as
financial habiites under IAS 39 Each investment strip contains
two components SPCs and “A” or “B” preference shares The
SPCs are measured at amortised cost The difference between
the net proceeds and amorbsed cost equate to the preference
share value Refer to Note 27 for further detaif

x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recogrused in the Income Statement in the
perod in which they are incurred except for borrowing costs
ncurred on borrowings directly atinbutable to development projects
that are capitahsed within the developmentiproducing asset

y) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 15, or contains, a
lease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at inception
date Depending on the nature of the agreement, the lease will be
treated as either a financing or operating lease

(SPC)

z) Share-based payment transactions

Employees (including sermor executves} and Directors of the
Group receive remuneration m the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity mstruments (‘equity-settled transactions’)

Equily seliled transactions

The cost of equity settted transactions with employees and
Directors are measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted and are recognised as an expense over the
vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant
holders become fully entitled to the award Far value 1s
determined by an independent external valuer using an appropnate
pricing model In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account Is
taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions hnked to the
price of the shares of the Company {market conditions)

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ulbmately vest,
except for awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting wrrespective of whether or
not the market condition 1s sabsfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satsfied

Forfeiture as defined in IFRS 2 and the specific conditons of the
Group's share based payments refers to the fallure to satisfy
vesting conditions other than market conditons The far values
determined by the independent valuer do not make any advance
allowance for employeas leaving service before the vesting date
and forfeitng thewr options However, where employees leave
before vestng, the expenses in the relevant penod reflect the
actual expenence of leavers before vesting

At each balance sheet date before vestng, the cumulative expense
15 calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod
has exprred and the managements best estmate of the
achievement or otherwise of non-market condiions number of
equity instruments that will ultmately vest or in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as
described above The movement in cumulative expense since the
previous balance sheet date 1s recogrised in the income
statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

aa) Pension and other post-employment benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme
Amounts payable to the pension ptan are charged to the income
staterment In the same pencd in which the services have been
rendered by the employees




Fairfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

bb) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred
tax

Current income tax

Current income tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or
recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the date of the statement of financial
position

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax Is recognised on temporary differences ansing
between the tax base of assets and habiites and therr camying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements

A deferred income tax hability 1s not recognised If a temporary
difference anses on bl recogniton of an asset or liability in a
transaction {other than a business combination}, that at the time of
the transaction, affects neither, accounting nor taxable profit or
loss

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s
probable that future income tax profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences ansing
on investments in subsidianes, jointly controlled entties and
associates, except where the timing of the temporary difference
can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substanbvely enacted at the statement of
financial positon date Deferred tax lablites may be offset agamnst
deferred tax assets within the same tax entity and tax junsdiction
Measurement of deferred tax liablites and assets reflect the tax
consequences expected to anse from the manner in which the
asset or habthty 1s recovered or settied

Petroleum Revenue Tax

Current UK Petroleum Revenue Tax (PRT) 1s charged as a tax
expense on chargeable field profits mncluded in the mncome
statement and 1s deductible for UK corporation tax Deferred PRT
15 calculated and provided for on temporary differences included in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

cc) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except as follows

+  Amendmentis to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Group Cash-
seltled Share-based Payment Transactions - This amendment
clanfies the defirion of vesting conditions and prescribes
treatment for an award that 15 cancelled (Effective date 1
January 2009)

o IFRS 7 Fnancial Instruments Disclosures - Changes in
disclosures such that far value measurements are to be
disclosed by the source of inputs using a three-level
hterarchy For impact of this new disclesure on the financial
statements refer to Note 17 Liquidity nsk management has
not been effected by this disclosure change

* IFRS 8 Operating Segments - Changes in disclosures Refer
to Note 3 for impact of this standard

*« |AS 1(R) Presentation of financial statements - Changes in
disclosures and the additonal requirement to report the
Statement of Comprehensive Income  Also, within the
Statement of Changes i Equity owner and ncn-owner
changes In equity are required to be disclosed separately

IAS 23(R) Borrowmng Costs — Changes n treatment of
borrowing costs such that the option to expense costs
ncurred to finance the construction of a qualifying asset has
been removed and therefore must be capitalised

dd} New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are not yet effectve for the year ended 31
December 2009, and have not been applied in prepanng these
consolidated financial statements and are expected to impact the
Group upon adoption
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= IFRS 3 Busmess Combinafions (revised 2008) — Costs of
acquisitions are to be expensed where previously they were
capitalised (Effectve date for acquisihons n annual periods
beginning on cr after 1 July 2009)

|AS 24 Related Party Disciosures (revised 2009) - Requires
additional disclosure (Effective date 1 January 2011)

IFRS 9 Fmancial Statements retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establshes two pnmary
measurement categones for financial assets, amortsed cost
and far value The basis of classification depends on the
entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
charactenstcs of the financia! asset  (Effectve date 1
January 2013) This standard 1s yet to be adopted by the EU
and consequently the Group has not determined when the
standard wil be implemented

The impact of the changes in accountng standards are not

expected to have a material impact on the accounting policies of
the Group

2 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements
a) Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions

1 Impairment

impairment of assets 15 assessed in accordance with Note 1(q)
For oll and gas assets, the recoverable amount 1s calculated using
the expected future cash flows based on reserves, future
producton profiles, commeodity prices and costs

u  Commercial reserve quantities

Commercial reserves are proven and probable ol and gas
reserves, which are defined as the estimated quantties of crude
all, which geoclogical, geophysical and engineenng data
demonstrate with a specified degree of certainty to be recoverable
in future years from known reservoirs and which are considered
commercially producible Reserve quantihes have been estimated
by Gaffney Chne & Associates (GCA) GCA has extensive
experience conducting reserves and resource estimations utlising
the Secunties Exchange Commission (SEC) rules and definiions
promulgated by the Scciety of Petroteum Engineers (SPE)

Commercial reserve quanttes and the associated cessation of
production assumptions mmpact various tems In the financal
statements, including depreciation, depleton and amortisaton,
impairment testing (refer Note 14), decommissioning assets and
habilities (refer to notes 10, 15 and 25} and the amortised cost of
the overnding royalty interest association with the term loan facility
(refer to Note 26)

ni  Decommissioning habihtles

The decommissioning of oIl and gas assets is not due to occur for
many years info the future Consequently, judgement s required in
relation to the estmated cash flows, removal date, environmental
legislaton, and the liability specific discount rate used to determine
the present value of these cash flows

v Leans and borrowings

Following the repayment of loan faciities A and B, there will be an
ongoing obligation to pay royalties in relation to the Dunlin Areas
In calculating this obligation management is required to exercise
Jjudgement in relaton to the discount rate, future cash flows,
estmated Iife of the loan and future LIBOR rates

b} Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting

policies
i Exploration and evaluation

The Group accounts for exploraton and evaluaton assets in
accordance wth the policy set out In Note 1(k} In appiyng this
policy, management are required io make certain estmates and
assumptions in relaton to the assessment of whether reserves are
commercially viable  Where costs have been capitalised n
accordance with Note 1(k) and are subsequently considered
unsuccessful, amounts are wntten off to the Income Statement
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ii SPCs and preference shares

SPCs and preference shares are funding mnstruments socurced from
private equity The value of these instruments 15 based on
estmated future cash flows and are impacted by the expected
conversion date As at the balance sheet date, the Group has
made the judgment that conversion will occur on the expected
Imtial Public Offenng date, May 2010

3 Segmental reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Group Is
required to report separately information about each reportable
segment The Group has several operating segments that are
aggregated into a single reporing segment as each of the
segments have similar economic charactenstics, and are similar in
each of the following respects the nature of the products and therr
production processes, the type of customers, the methods in which
products are distnbuted and the nature of the regulatory
environment The Group's operations are limited to the North Sea
and oil revenue 15 currenly generated from one customer
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4

Restatements and reclassifications

Retrospective restatements

The following retrospective restatements have been made to the 2008 comparative information

a)

b}

Revenue entitlements — Dunng 2009, the Group wentified overhfit and underlift positions acquired as part of the Dunlin acquisition at 1
May 2008 that were incomectly excluded from its revenue entitlements calculation as at 31 December 2008 The impacts on the
consolidated financial statements were to increase the net profit after tax and net assets by $1 7 milllon Additional detail 1s set cut in the
tables below

Balance sheet adjustments — The Group identified a process emor that occurred when recording the Group’s share of the Dunlin Area
assets In its subsidiary entites The error resulted in a misstatement of accounts payable, cash and short-term deposits and accounts
recervable Addiional detail 1s set out in the tables below

An opening statement of financia! positicn for the comparable pencd has not been presented as both of the restatements relate to the Dunlin
area assets, which were only acquired part way through 2008

(a) (b}
Previcusly Revenue Balance

stated enbtlemnents sheet adjustments Restated
Effact on the income statement 2008 2008 2008 2008
Selected lnes $000 $000 $000 $000
Cost of sales 66,428 (3,438) - 62,990
Loss before tax (307) 3,438 - 3,131
Income tax expense / {benefit} (24,506) {1 719) - {26,225)

._Net logs after tax {24,813) 1,719 - {23,094) |
Effect on the statement of fi lal position
Selected Iines
Cash 72,215 - (18,625) 53,590
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and accruals 35,103 (1,303) 2,234 36,034
Current assets 203 587 (1,303) {16,391) 185,893
Total assets 811,241 1,303) (16,391} 793,547
Trade and other payables, deferred income and accruals {68,078) 4,742 16,391 (46,945)
Current labilities {165,859} 4,742 16,391 {144,7286)
Deferred tax labilities {100,846} (1719) - {102,565)
Non-current habilitres (668,427} {1.719) - {670,146)
Total liabilities (834,286) 3,023 16,391 {814,872)
Retained deficit (73,008) 1,719 - (71,379)
Total equity (23,044) 1,719 - {21,325)
Effect on the cash flow statement
Profit / (Loss) from operations before taxation (307) 3,438 - 3,131
Non-cash adjustments 23,382 - (16,707) 6,675
{Increase) / decrease i trade and other recevables (5,691) - - {5,691}
{Increase) ! decrease in prepayments {7 998) 1305 (2,234} {8,927}
(Increase) / decrease in inventory (30) - - {30}
Increase / (decrease) in trade and cther payables 43,389 (4,743) {16,391) 22,255
Increase / (decrease) in provisions {5786) - - (576)
Net cash flow from oparabing actmvities 52,169 - (35,332) 16,837
Net cash flow from investing acthities (149,297) - - (149,297)
Net cash flow from financing activibies 161,663 - - 161,663
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 64 536 - (35.333) 29,203
Net foreign exchange difference (20,377} - 16,708 (3,669)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the penod 28,056 - - 28,056
{ Cash and cash equivalents at period end 72,215 - {18,625) 53,590 |

i Reclassifications

The Group has made certain reclassifications to the presentation set out within in its 2008 financial statements to assist users of its financial
statements Significant reclassifications are descnbed below

Consolidated Income Statemeant

Foreign exchange gains and losses - Realised and unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses have been reclassified from
administrative expenses to either finance income or finance costs This reclassification has been made to help users of the accounts to
better understand changes to administrative expenses by removing fluctuations caused only by foreign exchange The impacts of these
changes are disclosed in notes 7v and 7w, and

Exploration wnte-offs — Exploration wnte-offs have been reclassified from cost of sales to a separate component of the operating profit
below the gross profit ine  As exploraton wnte-offs and impairment losses have been grouped together in 2009 (refer to notes 13 and
14), it was considered more appropnate to disclose this line item below gross profit  The impact of this change 1s disclosed on the face of
the Income Statement

Consohdated Statement of Financial Position

Exploration and evaluation assets and goodwll and other intangible assets - In 2008 the Group presented its exploration and evaluation
assets and website costs as one line item, referred o as “intangible assets™ In the current penod, the Group now considers it more
meaningful to users of its accounts to separately disclose its nvestment in exploration and evaluation assets and combine “goodwill and
other intangible assets” The impact of these changes can be [dentified on the face of the Statement of Financial Position and within notes
11 and 13, and
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. Prepayments and accrued income, and deferred income and accruals — The Group has disaggregated these current assets and current
habiites from trade and other receivables and trade and ather payables respectively, to separate line items accounts as they contain items
with greater volatiity (1 e overitft and underift positons and income accrued for hedging positions) The impact of these changes on the
consolidated financsal statements can be identified on the face of the Statement of Financial Position and within notes 18, 19, 23 and 24

Consolidated Statemeant of Cash Flows

+  Far value adjustment on denvatives — This non-cash item has been reclassified from inwvesting aclviies to a non-cash item within
operating actrties to better reflects its nature  The impact of this adjustment can be identfied on the face of the Statement of Cash Flows,

. Net foreign exchange difference — Realised fereign exchange gains and losses of $16 7 milion charged to the Income Statement (refer to
Note 7vi) have been reclassified from net foreign exchange differences to net finance costs This presentation shows net foreign
exchange differences that reflect unrealised gains and losses ansing from changes in foreign exchange rates in accordance with IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, and

¢  Grouping of similar items — The number of line items on the Statement of Cash Flows has been reduced by grouping similar tems
together This pnnciple has been applied to finance income and expense items, depreciaton, depleton and amortisation items and
expenditure on certain oll and gas assets

in Other presentation changes

Certain presentational changes have been made to assist users of the financial statements These changes include

. The Company accounts of Fairfield Energy Limited have been presented separately following the consolidated financial statements o
simplify the presentation of the accounts, and

. A Statement of Comprehensve income has been prepared in accordance with to the revised International Accounting Standard I1AS 1
The presentation of this statement impacts the presentation of the statement of changes in equity The impacis of these changes can be
seen on the face of the respective financial statements

5 Business combinations
Acquisitions In 2009
There have been no transactions involving business combinations during the year ended 31 December 2009

Acquisitions in 2008

On 21 December 2007, Group entites Fairfield Betula Linited and Fairfield Fagus Limited and subsidianes of Mitsubishi Corporation {together
the “Purchasers”) signed sale and purchase agreements to acquire Dunhn, Dunlin South West, Meriin and Osprey fields, collectively referred to
as the Dunlin Area, from Shell UK Limited, Esso Exploration and Production UK Limited, Statoil {UK) Limited and OMV (UK} Limited {together
the "Sellers"} The purchase was completed on 30 Apnl 2008 wath an effective date of 1 January 2008 The date of acquisition was deemed 1o
be 30 Apnl 2008 for the following reasons

. The transaction was not uncondiional until that date and couid not be reversed,

. Whilst management had significant nghts to control certain decisions in respect of the Fields, the SPA did not explicitly provide
control over all areas, and

. Management did not view the Fields as being practically controlled on 21 December 2007 and whilst the Group benefited from the
assets from 1 January 2008, no significant changes in control conditions arose between those dates

Key terms o the agreement included

] The Group acquired a 70 percent interest in the Dunlin Area fields with the remaining 30 percent acquired by subsidianes of Mitsubishi
Corporation,

1] Total consideration of $98 8 million for the Dunlin area fields was paid acquinng property and equipment, licence interests, working capital
balances and decommissicning liabilites  The Group's share of the consideration was $69 1 million,

1 The Group incurred additional acquisition costs of $2 3 midlion (with $1 5 million being prepaid in 2007),

w  The secunty for the decommssioning habiity was based on the Umited Kingdom Offshore Operators Associalion decommissioning and
secunty agreement guidelines The guidelines provide the principles for calculatton of decommussiorung habiites The secunty took the
form of an wrevocable standby tetter of credit,

v A subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation provided the guarantee to procure the letters of credit required under the decommissioning security,
and

vi The Group's share of the consideration paid was financed through a $72 million term loan provided by a financing subsidiary of Mitsuibish
Corporation The remainder of the purchase consideraton was funded through interest-free parent company loans

The farr value of the identifiable assets and habilites of the Dunlin Area fields as at the date of acquisition were

Group Fair valus Fair value on
considerati adjustment acqulsition
$000 $000 $000
Oil and gas propertles 81,736 - 81,736
Decommissioning asset - 304,500 304,500
Inventories 2,77 - 2,771
Other current assets 1,946 - 1,946
Total assets 86,453 304,500 390,953
Other current liabilities {14,681) - {14,681)
Decommissioning provision - {304,500) (304,500)
Deferred tax liabilitles - {8,493) (8,493)
Total liabilities {14,681) (312,993) (327,674)

. Net assets 71,772 (8,493} 63,279 |
Goodwill arising on acquisition 8,403

| Total consideration 71,772 |
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Represented by

Cash consideration 70,216
Non-cash consideration 1,556
Total consideration 71,772

it 1s not possible to disclose the cammying values of the assets, habilibes and contingent habiiles immediately before the combination as this
infermation was not provided by the vendors  Goodwill on acquisiion resulted due to the recogrution of defermed tax llabilities created from the
difference between the fair value of the assets acquired and therr tax basis

(] Revenue

2009 2008
$000 $000
Ol revenue from the sale of goods 110,489 103,106
Gain / {loss} on realisation of cash flow hedges 64,155 -
1_Total ravenue 174,644 103,106 |
7 Other income / expenses
i Other operating income
2009 2008
$000 $0a0
Joint venture recovenes 4,832 4,534
Other income 1,545 97
1_Total other operating income 8,377 4,631
ii Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
2009 2003
$000 $000
Included in cost of sales
Depreciation of Sultorm Voe Terminal and Brent Systemn 226 A
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation of cil and gas propertiles 35,239 14,090
Included in administrative expenses
Amortisation of intangible assets 55 42
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 690 724
| Total depreciation, deplatlon and amortisation 16,210 14,947
m Exploration and impairment losses
2009 2008
$000 $000
Included in exploration and impairment losses
Impairment of goodwill 4,062 -
Release of advance (6,000) -
Exploration write-offs during the year 7,735 380
Exploration wnte-offs previously capitalised 8,157 458
| Total exploration and impairment losses 13,954 338

Dunng the penod, Fairfield Cedrus Limited recewved an advance of $6 million from Germimi Qil & Gas Fund Il {Gemini) for the development of
As Gemumi carmed the nsk of
unsuccessful dnling, and dnlling was proven unsuccessful, the amount was recognised i the income statement

the North East Maureen appraisal well The amount was repayable commencing the first sate of ol

In the consolidated financial statements for 2008, exploration wnte-offs were recorded as a separate Ime item within Gross Profit These
balances have been reclassified in 2009
w Denvative financial instruments
2009 2008
$000 $000
Ineffective portion of effective options. (13,852) (5.875)
Farr value change of instruments not designated as hedges (13,662) 51,476
Fair value adjustment on lapse of contract - (3,255}
| {Loss}/ Gain on derivatives {27,514) 42,346 |

Additiona! information regarding the impact of denvative financial instruments on the consolidated financial statements 1s set out in Note 17

v Finance income

2003 2008
$000 $Q00
Interest income 413 1,516
Forexgn exchange gains 4,006 -
Discount unwind reversal 582 -
| Total finance Income 5,001 1,516 |
vi Finance costs
2009 2008
$000 $000
Interest on loans and other finance costs 20,013 10,484
Interest and finance costs on SPCs {Note 27) 50,513 30,109
Discount unwinding 13454 9,413
Amortisation of SPC transaction costs (Note 27) 441 230
Foreign exchange losses - 16,708
I Total finance costs 84,421 656,944 |
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vii Operating leases

2009 2008
$000 $000
Minimum fease payments recognised as an expense 1,300 978
The future minimum lease paymentis at 31 December 2009 are shown in the table below
2009 2008
$000 3000
Payable within
One year 1,225 1,059
One to five years 1,206 1,060
More than five years . -
L 2,431 2,119

There were no contingent rentals or sub-lease paymenis relating to the operating leases The cperaling leases relate to rental office
accommedaticn

vni  Auditors’ remuneration

2009 2008
$000 $000
Fees payable to auditors Ernst & Young

Fees payable for the audit of the Company's statutery accounts* 480 527
Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legistation 7 a2z
Fees payable for other services pursuant to legislation 192 -
Fees payable for tax services 694 416
Fees payable for transactional services 483 3

) 2,196 1,328

*Fees in respect of the audit of the accounts of Farrfield Energy Limited including the Group's consolidated financial statements
Ix Employes benefits expense

2009 20048
$000 3000
Wages and salarles 6,781 7191
Bonuses 1,013 1,110
Social security costs 1,079 1007
Pension costs 1,201 1,203
Insurance (medical and Iife) 3 167
Share-based payments 2,200 1469
[ 12,277 12,147
Average number of employees
Directors 2 2
Finance and administration 19 13
Technical 28 27
[ 49 42
Addiiona! mformation regarding the remuneration of key management is set outin Note 32w
8 Incomae tax
The major components of mcome tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are
i Income statement
2009 2008
$000 $000
Current Income tax
Current Income tax expense - -
Deferred tax
Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences (16,298} 29,738
Prior year adjustments {1,866} {3.513)
" Income tax (benefit) / expense reported in the income statement {18,164} 26,225
ii Statement of comprehensive income
2009 2008
3000 $000
Deferred tax related to items directly charged or credited within equity
Income tax benefit / {expense) 40,610 {62,665)
iincome tax benefit / {(expense) charged directly to equity 490,610 {62,665)

iii Reconciliation of accounting loss before tax to tax benefit / expense recorded in the consolidated income statement

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiphed by the UK standard income tax rate for the year ended 31
December 2009 1s as follows

2009 2008

$000 3000

Accounting (loss) / profit before income tax (82,217) 3,131
Accounting (loss) / profit multiplled by the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 50% (Group) 41,109 (1,566)
Expenditure not deductible for tax purposes {21,639) {12,794)
MNon-taxable income 10,240 13,413
Benefit of praviously unrecognised temporary differences 2,966 3,513
Temporary differences not recognised (8,282) {12,135)
Group rellef for no consideration 924 -
Differences relating to supplementary ¢charge on ring fence profits (12,982) (16,656)
Release on impalment of asset acquired as a business combination 4,062 -
Prior year adjustments 1,866 -
" Income tax benefit / (expense) charged to the consolidated Incomae statement 18,164 {26,225)
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In 2008 the Group acquired interests tn vanous producing fields in the UK North Sea The standard tax rate used above of 50% 1s the rate
that applies to the Group’s business of explonng for and exploiting hydrocarbons within the UK and its designated areas and 1s compnsed of
corporatton tax of 30% plus a supplementary charge of 20%

The Group has unrecognised temporary differences tn respect of UK tax losses of $23,328,000 (2008 $59,601,000) that should be available
to carry forward indefinitely agamnst future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose In addition, the Group has unrecognised
temporary differences in respect of pre-trading nng fence expenditure of approximately $71,065,000 {2008 $8,053,000) which should be
deductible in the companies in which they arose provided these companies commence trading in the next two to six years

Deferred 1ax assets have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences of Group companies that have either not yet started to trade
or are not expected to make profits in the foreseeable future against which these temporary differences can be offset

v Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax relates to the followmng

2009 2008
$000 $000
At start of year 102,565 5,182
Expense to the Income Statement {18,164) 26 225
Deferred tax arising from business combinations - 8,493
Expense / (benefit) on far value movements on hedges taken directly to equity {40,609) 62,665

" Deferred tax liability 43,792 102,565 °

In 2008 the Group recogrised a deferred tax hability of $8,493,000 as a resull of the acquisibon, dunng the year, of the Dunlin, Dunlin SW,
Osprey and Merlin producing oil fields The deferred tax hability arose as a result of the difference between the fair values and the tax bases
of the assets acquired The calculation of the deferred tax iability ansing in respect of the business combination assumed a tax rate of 50%,
representing the Company’s estimate of the tax rate at which the temporary differences are expected to unwind in the future

The Dunlin Field 1s subject to Petroleum Revenue Tax ("PRT") Deferred PRT labiites are provided on temporary differences of the field as
at the statement of financial positon The Company had PRT losses of approximately $150,000,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008
$57.000,000) available to offset any other temporary differences

The movement in the deferred tax balances is set out below
Year ended 31 December 2009

Accelerated Fair value Other
capital movement on tamporary
allowances Provisions Tax losses hedge drfferences Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2009 207,620 (159 413) (37,728) 85,466 6,620 102,565
Adjustments in respect of prior years - - (13 385) 11,347 172 (1,866)
Expense / (benefit) for the penod 38,088 17,496 (42,029) (25,723) (4,130} (16,298)
Expense / (benefit) taken directly to equity - - - {40,609} (40,609)
At 31 December 2009 245,708 {141,917} {93,142} 30,481 2,662 43,792 |
Year ended 31 December 2008
Accelorated Fair value Other
capltal " it on tamporary
1l Provisions Tax los: hedga differances Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2008 - - - - 5,182 5,182
Expense / (benefit) for the penod 199 127 {159,413) (37,728} 22.801 1,438 26,225
Expense from business combinations 8493 - - - - 8,493
Expense / (benefit) taken directly 1o equity - - - 62,665 - 62,665
. At 31 December 2008 207,620 {159 413) (37,728} 85,466 6,620 102,565 |

9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are cafculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calcutated by dividing the net profit or loss attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be i1ssued on conversion of all the dilutive potenbal ordinary shares into ordmnary
shares Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and anly when, ther conversion to ordinary shares would decrease
earnings per share or increase the loss per share from continuing actviies  As potential ordinary shares will not be treated as dilutive, the
basic and diluted earnings per share are equivalent

The followtng reflects the income and share data used i the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations

2009 2008
$000 $000
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for basic and dituted gamings {84,053) (23,094)
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 2,300,090 2,300,090
The following reflects potential dilutive shares
Number of options in Issue at the reporting perod end 3,947,500 1,998,200
Converible preference shares In issue at the reporting peried end 30,930,333 20,902,008
| Total 34,877,833 22,900,208 |

28 of 55




Fairfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

10  Oil and gas properties

Qil and Gas Decommissioning
Assets Asaat Total
$000 $000 $000
Year ended 31 December 2009
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2009 112,806 302,434 415,240
Additlons 156,086 - 156,086
Depreciation and impaiment (22,272) (12,967} {35,239)
Change in decommssioning asset - (45,104) {48,104}
[_Net carrylng amount 246,620 241,363 487,983 |
At 31 December 2009
Historical cost 277,885 250,427 537,312
Accumulated depreciation {31,265) (18 064} {49,329}
|_Net carrying amount 246,620 241,363 487,983 )
Acquisitons from business combinations are further disclosed in Note §
Ol and Gas Decommissicning
Assats Asset Total
$000 $000 $000
Year ended 31 December 2008
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2008 - - -
Additions 121,800 304,500 426,300
Depreclation and impairment (8,994) (5 096) (14,080)
Change i decommissioning asset - 3,030 3,030
| Net carrying amount 112,806 302,434 415,240 |
At 31 December 2008
Historical cost 121,800 307,530 429,330
Accumulated depreciation (8,994) {5.096) {14.090)
. Net carrying amount 112,806 302,434 415,240 |
1 Exploration and evaluation assets
2009 2008
$000 3000
Net carrying amount at 1 January 68,803 52,534
Additions 45,468 11,621
Provision adjustment {2,431) -
Exploration wnie-offs (Note 14) {15,892) {B38)
Exchange rate adjustments 7,003 6,095
Non-current assets held for sale - {609)
|_Carrylng amount at 31 December 102,951 68,803 |
The exploration wnte-offs recorded for 2009 are discussed in detail in Note 14
12  Property, plant and equipment
IT equipmant Furniture Total
$000 $000 3000
Year ended 31 December 2009
Net camying amount at 1 January 2009 1.267 10 1,217
Additions 302 2 304
Depreciation and impaiment (683) {7) {690)
_Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 836 5 801 ¢
At 31 December 2009
Histoncal cost 2,849 41 2,890
Accumulated depreclavon (1,963) {36) {1,999)
' Net camying amount 836 5 891 |
Year ended 31 December 2003
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2008 1,047 10 1,057
Additions 932 12 944
Depreciation and impairment {712} {12} (724)
1 _Carrying amount at 31 December 2008 1,267 10 1,277 ]
At 31 December 2608
Histoncal cost 2,542 41 2,583
Accurmulated depreciation (1,275) (31) {1,306%
L Net carrying amount 1,267 10 1,277 |
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13  Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill Website costs Software Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
Year ended 31 Decembear 2009
Net camying amount at 1 January 2009 13675 125 - 13,800
Additions - - 757 757
Amortisation and impairment {4,062) (55) - (4,117)
[ Carrylng amount at 31 December 2009 9,613 70 757 10,440 |
At 31 December 2009
Histencal cost 13,675 167 757 14,599
Accumulated amortisation and Impaiment {4,062) {97} - {4,159)
Net camying amount 9,613 70 57 10,440 |
Goodwill impairment 1s discussed in detal! tn Note 14
Goodwill Wobalite costs Software Total
$000 $o0o0o $000 $000
Year ended 31 December 2008
Net camying amount at 1 January 2008 5182 93 - 5,275
Addiions 8,493 74 - 8,567
Amortisation and impairment - (42) - (42)
1 Camying amount at 31 December 2008 13,675 125 - 13,800 |
At 31 December 2008
Histoncal cost 13,675 167 - 13,842
Accumulated amortisatlen and impairment - {42) - (42)
| Net camying amount 13,675 125 - 13,800 |

The Group carnes goodwill as a result of previous business combinations with Acorn Qil & Gas Limited and the acqussition of the Dunlin Area
fields In all cases the goodwill created was equal to the deferred tax labilites ansing from the business combinaton  Goodwill 1s tested
annually for impaiment — see Note 14

14  Impairment

The Group 1s required to test its assets for indicators of mpainnent under IFRS 6 and IAS 36 and goodwill annually in accordance with IAS 36
If an indicator of impairment exists, or for the testing of the goodwill, the recoverable amount of the CGU, groups of CGUs or goodwil!
(depending of the test carned out) must be higher than its carrying value Recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use

Assets (excluding goodwill)

In the current pened, the dnlling of a dry-well in the North East Maureen area was an indicator of impatrment for the exploration and evaluation
assets associated with the Maureen Area As a consequence, It was determined that ali capitalised cosis in the Maureen Area would be
tested for impairment as it 1s management’s expectation that further development of the Maureen Area will not be pursued The testing carned
out indicated that the recoverable amount for the Maureen Area (P110 and P591) to be appreximately zero using both measurement bases
(value in use and farr value less costs to sell) The excess of the carrying value over the recoverable amount was charged to the consolidated
income statement as below

2009 2008
$000 $000
Asset Related Falrfield subsidiary Description
Maureen Fairfield Cedrus Ltd E&E costs pnor to 2009 1,640 -
Maureen Fairfield Energy Holdings Ltd E&E costs pnor to 2009 8,517
Maureen Fairfield Cedrus Ltd E&E 2009 expenditure 7,735 -
15,892 - !

There were no iImpairments recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 Exploration write-offs
of $838,000 recorded in the consolidated income statement for the ended 31 December 2008 were wntten off in accordance with the Group s
exploration and evaluation accounting policy

Goodwlll
The Group performs goodwll impairment testing on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment  The most recent

test was performed at 31 December 2009 In assessing whether the goodwll has been impaired, the carrying amount of the cash-generating
urit was compared with its recoverable amount The goodwill allocated to each cash-generating umit1s set-out in the table below

2009 2008

$000 $000
Asset Related Fairfield subsidiary(s}
Maureen Fairfleld Cedrus Lirmited - 4,062
Crawford Fairfield Acer Limited 1,083 1083
Dunlin Area Faurfleld Betula Limited and Fairfield Fagus Limited 8,530 8,530

9,613 13,675 |

Koy assumptions

The value in use calculations, for the purpose of impairment testing, require the use of estmates and assumptions such as discount rates,
exchange rates, commodity pnces, future capital requirements and future operating performance The key assumptions adopted include

a} Cash flows — Value in use calculations are based on cash flows expected to be generated by projected ol production profiles up to the
expected dates of cessation of production of each field Cash flows are based on those set out in the Group's annual 3-year business
plan and thereafter estimated through to the cessation of production date

b} Qi pnces — In 2009, ol pnces were estimated using prices adopted by the Group’s external reserves engineer In 2008, pnces were
based on extemal market forecasts The specific prices are set out in the table below

Year ($/bbl) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2013 Thereafter
2009 testing Nia $81 $36 $88 587 $87 $88 2015 + 2%
2008 testing $55 $75 $75 $75 $75 $75 $75 $75

30 of 55




Farrfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

¢) Productton and reserves — The production and reserve profiles were based on proved and prabable reserves based on an external report
completed as at 31 December 2009 by Gaffney Cline and Associates Internal esimates were used as the basis for reserves adopted in
2008

d) Pre-tax discount rate — Management assessed its weighted average cost of capital as at 31 December 2009 in determining an
appropnate pre-tax discount rate for impairment purposes The rate adopted was 16% (2008 20%)

Testing outcomes

The impairment testing indicated an impairment to the goodwill allocated to the Maureen area The value of goodwill recorded at the end of
2008 of $4 1 million was fully impaired in the iIncome statement for the year ended 31 December 2009 There were no impatments of goodwill
recognised in 2008

Sensttvities

The key sensiivities to the goodwill impairment test are oil prices, production reserves profiles and the discount rate adopted The Group has
performed sensiivity analysis to determine if a reasonably possible change would eliminate the excess of the recoverable amount over the
carrying value (‘headroom'} of each cash-generating unit  This analysis wdentfied that the existing headroom of the Dunlin Area assets of
approximately $255 million would be eliminated if the forward oil pnce curve was reduced by approximately 18% each year The testing
carned out did not identify any reasonably possible change that would impair the Crawford goodwill

15 Investments

2009 2008
$000 $000
Year ended 31 December
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2,881 -
Additons - 2,972
Depreclation (226) o
Change in decommissioning asset (250) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2,405 2,881 |
At 31 December
Historcal cost 2,722 z2972
Accumulated depreciation (317) ()
Net carrying amount 2,405 2,881

The Group holds a non-controliing interest in the Sullom Voe Terminal {SVT) and Brent Systern (BS) in order to provide an export route for ail
production fram the Dunlin Area Assets

168  Joint ventures
The Group has the following joint venture interests

As at As at

December 2009 D ber 2008

Holding interest Equity interest Equity interest

Block 9/27a Fairfield Acer Limited 25 0% 250%

Clipper South Fairfleld Acer Limited 50 0% 100 0%

Crawford Fairfield Acer Limited 52 0% 52 0%
Dunhin Area (Dunfin, Bunfin SW, Merlin, Osprey, Skye) Fairfield Betula Limited

Fairfield Fagus Limited 70 0% 70 0%

Maureen Area P110 Fairfield Cedrus Limited 6154% 100 00%

Maureen Area P591 Fairfield Cedrus Limited 49 93% 81 14%

On 1 July 2009, Fairfield Acer Limited (FAL) completed a farm-out agreement with RWE Dea UK SNS Limited (RWE) Under the terms of the
agreement RWE acquired 50% of FAL's interest in Clipper South Discovery area compnsing License P 465 Block 48/19¢ and License P 0038
Blocks 48/19a and 48/20a The consideration received from RWE included the retmbursement of £2 9 million of histoncal costs and future
funding development expenditure capped at £20 milion ("carned interest™) At 31 December 2002 £1 1 milion of camed interest had been
ubtised Reimbursement of histoncal costs was credit against the assocrated exploration and evaluation and operating cost accounts

On 27 July 2009, Farfield Cedrus Limited {FCL) signed a farm-out agreement assigning 48 96% of its parbcipating interest in its Maureen
Area to Endeavour Energy UK Limited (38 46%) and Challenger Minerals {North Sea) Limited (CML) (10 5%} to fund the development of an
appraisal welt Dnlling was camed-out dunng the year Following the unsuccessful dniing, CML elected not to take-up its assigned interest
which reverted back to FCL

17  Financial instruments

a} Financial management

The Group holds a portfolio of commedity denvative contracts, with vanous counterparties, covering the underlying oil business The use of
financial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors The Group does not enter into or trade financial
Instruments, including denvatve financial instruments, for speculative purposes

b) Falr value of derivative instruments

2009 2008
$000 $000
Cash flow hedges

Commodity swaps 33,072 95,485
Option contract 14,071 41,528
47,143 137,013

Non-designated hedges
Optlon contracts 17,392 61,500
17,392 61,500

|_Total derivative financial asset and liabllitles 64,535 198,513 |
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Current assets 64,831 93,469
Non-current assets 2,492 105,044
Non-current lability {2,788) -

| €4,535 198,513 |

¢} Fair value of financial assets and llabllitles
{7) Fair values

Set out below 1s a companson by category of carrying amounts and farr values of all of the Group's financial Instruments that are carned in the
financial statements

Carrying Amount Falr Value

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 3000
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 11,118 12,437 11,118 12,437
Prepayments and accrued income 35626 13,288 35,626 13,288
Derivative financial instruments {current) 64,83 93,469 64,831 93.489
Danvative financial instruments {non-current) 2,492 105,044 2,492 105,044
Cash and short-term deposits 35,531 53,590 35,531 53,580
Financial habihtres
Trade and other payables 5814 14,273 5814 14,273
Deferred income and accruals 22,578 18,840 22,578 18,840
Leans and borrowings 94,439 93,355 94,429 93,355
Denvative financiak Instruments. 2,788 - 2,788 -
Subordinated preference certificates 350,671 202,159 353,212 220 200
Preference shares 49,319 46,593 158,827 52 255

The farr value of the financial assets and habilites are included at the amount at which the instrument coutd be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or hquidation sale  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate

the fair values

. Cash and short term deposits, trade and other receivables, prepayments and accrued income, trade and cother payables, deferred
income and accruals approximate their camying values largely due o the short-term matunties of these instruments,

. Denvative financial instruments are based on mark-to-market valuations provided by the 1ssuing investment bank,

. Loans and borrowings approximate their carrying values Addiional details regarding loans and borrowings are descnibed in Note 28,
and

. Subordinated preference certificates and preference shares are valued based on assessments carned-out by an independent third party

(I}) Financlal instrument fair value hlerarchy

The below table shows the herarchical classification of financral instruments measured at fair vafue as at 31 December 2009 Categonsation
withen the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows

Level 1 - Valued using quoted prices In active markets for identical assets
Level 2 - Valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted pnces inctuded within Level 1
Levei 3 - Vatued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data

2009 2008
Level ] Lovel 2 Level 3 Total Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
3000 5000 $000 3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial agsets
Derivative financlal instruments - 67,323 - 67,323 - 198,513 - 198,513
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 2,788 - 2,788 - . - -

The farr value of dernvative commodity assets and liabilites are estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward pnce
and the current market forward prices for the residual matunty of the contract using a discount rate based on LIBOR plus an appropnate nsk
premium, and applying this to the contracted volumes

d} Creditrisk

Credit nsk represents the loss that would be recognised if the countemparties to financial instruments fail to perform as contracted The Group
trades only with recogmised, creditworthy thurd partes The majonty of the Group's revenue comes through the sale of hydrocarbons to Petro
Diamond Company Limited (Petro Diamond), which is a subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation In the event that Petro Diamond was not able to
pay an invaice, the presence of a imited parent company guarantee from Mitsubisty Corporation to all of Petro Diamond s creditors ensures
that the Group s credit nsk from non-payment is reduced

The rematnder of the Group's income comes in the form of recharges to joint venture partners Credit nsk associated with this relationship is
managed within the framework of the Joint Operating Agreements by commitung to spending on projects when the funds from all operators
are already in place

The Group may have significant cash balances ansing from capital calls and its operating aclivites at any particular tme Cash 1s maintained
on deposil with the Royal Bank of Scotland
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The Group’s commodity contracts are held by two S&P AA- counter parties with the largest holding 77% of the exposure The opton and
commodity contract specify mimmum credit rating cntena below which counter parties are required to provide additiona! secunty in the form of
collateral or to transfer the contracts to alternative counter partres meeting the mimmum credit cntena

The Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk is kited to the carnyng value of financral assets as disclosed in Note 17(c)

a) Currency exposure
{i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group's statement of financial posiion and tncome statement are affected by movements in USD/GBP exchange rates Cumency
exposure anses from sales or purchases in currencies other than functional currency Dunng 2009, the Group did not engage in foreign
currency hedging transactions The Greup's exposure to foreign currency 15 as follows

2009 2008
£000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 7,321 38,512
Trade recelvables 4,674 710
Trade payables (18,569) {1,932)
Net exposure (6,574) 37,290 |
The following significant exchange rates applied dunng the year
Avarage rate Reporting date spot rate
2009 2008 2009 2008
USD GBP 06391 05367 06198 06919

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The following table demenstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Sterling exchange rate, with all other varables held
constant, of the Group's profit befere tax (due to movement in the fareign exchange compenent of costs)

Increase / Increase /

decrease in (decrease) on

£ USS rate lost before tax

$000

2009 +10% 1,061
-10% (1.081)

2008 +10% (6,17)
-10% 6,017

Mothods and assumptions

Sensiivity analysis was performed by applying a percentage increase/decrease to cash and short-term deposits, accounts receivable and
accounts payable that were denominated in currencies other than functional currency The 10% level of change was considered tc be realistic
based upon the rates exhibited over the penod

fi Commodity price risk managemeant

The Group 15 exposed to commodity price volatiity on ol sales The Group may enter into o1l futures and swap contracts to hedge future
production in order to reduce the Group’s exposure to movements In the spot ail pnce In 2008, the Group purchased contracts covering
production for 2009 and 2010 Dunng 2009 the Group entered into certain denvative contracts to manage the commedity pnce nsk for 2011 for
a base level of forecast production The premium paid for new hedges taken out in 2009 was $2 7 milion (2008 $27 6 milion) The Group
has designated these financial instruments as cash flow hedges The effective portion of changes i the fair value of denvatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred tn equity The gain or loss refating to the ineffective portion 1s recogmised immediately
in profit or loss

The change in value of the financial instruments recognised directly in equity was a loss of $40 6 milion (2008 gain of $62 7 milion} 1n 2009,
this was represented by a change n a loss in the fair value of $17 1 milhon (2008 gain of $125 3 million), a loss on recychng of effective cash
flow hedges of $64 2 million {2008 $nil) offset by an income tax benefit of $40 8 million {2008 $62 7 milion)

(1} The foliowing table sets out a summary of the bbis of denvative conltracts hedging commodity pnce nsks at 31 December 2000 and 31
December 2008

Average 6-12 mths 12-18 mths 18 mths + Total
Hedge Price 6 mths or less
31 December 2009 USS /bbbl Volume(bbl} Volume (bbl} Volume (bbl} Volume {bbl} Volume {bbl}
Swaps (receved fixed pay floating) 108 51 345 81 320,764 346 200 288,500 1,301,265
Puts purchased 105 00 572,438 536,580 - - 1,109,018
Calls purchased 153 00 345,801 320,764 346 200 288,500 1,301,265
| Total 1,264,040 1,178,108 892,400 577,000 3,711,548 |
Averageo 6 mths or 6-12 mths 12-18 mths 18 mths + Total
Hedge Price less
31 December 2008 USS/bbl _Volume (bbl)] Volume (bbl} Volume (bbl) Volume {bbl} Volume {bbl)
Swaps (received fixed pay floating) 13460 309,348 309,350 345,801 266,722 1,231,221
Puts purchased 10500 585,017 455,323 572,438 446,178 2,068,956
Calls purchased 185 00 308,348 309,350 345 801 268,722 1,231,221
L Total 1,213,713 1,074,023 1,264,040 979,622 4,531,398 |
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(1) Sensitivity Analysis - Sensitivity of the Net Loss o changes in the ail pnce

The table below summanses the impact of changes in the hedged o1l pnce on the net loss of the Group,
Profit before tax

2009 2008
$000 $c00
Qul Price ($US/barrel) +/- $20 CC +/-25,327 +/- 18,088

The Group has estimated that a $20 00 change in the cil pnce would lead to a reduction in the cash flow hedge reserve of $17 2 millien

g) Interestrate risk management

Financiat instruments exposed to interest rate nsk include loan facilites B and C {linked to LIBOR) and cash held on deposit (interest beanng
accounts at market rates) SPCs, have a fixed annual rate of interest of 8% for the first 7 years and 14% thereafter and therefore are not
affected by external changes in interest rates

The Group’s exposure to interest rate nsk and sensitivity analysis on a change of 100 basis points in interest rates on balances of which
interest 1s charged at 31 December 2009 15 set cut below

Sensitimty Analysls
Profit and Loss Equity
Floating  Fixed Interest
Interest rate nsk exposures Interest rate rate Total 100 Bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2009 mcrease decrease Increase decrease
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash 35531 - 35,531 (355) 355 - -
Financial habilities
Loan faciries (94,249) {273,000) (367,349) (9200 920 - -
Provisions {4,840) - (4,840) (48) 48 - -
' Net financial ts/(liabilitles) (63,658) {273,000) {336,658)
Sensitivity Analysis
Profit and Loss Equity
Floating  Fixed interest

Interest rate nsk exposures nterest rate rate Total 100 bp 100bp 100bp 100 bp

31 December 2008 Notes $000 $000 $000 Increase decrease Increase decrease

Financial assets

Cash 53,580 - 53,590 (536) 536 - -

Financial habihties

Loan facihties (93,355) {273,000) _{366,355) (966) 966 - -

Net financial assetsi{liabilitles) {39,765} {273,000) {312,765)

h} Llquldity risk management

The Group currently relies on drawing capital from its shareholders and investors 1o manage its funding requirements The annual budget 1s
the basis for forecasting capital requirernents and capitat i1s called on the basis of it as adjusted for changes indicated in monthly and quarterly
management reports  Liquidity nsk 15 managed by ensunng capital calls are issued well in advance to meet payment of expenses as they
anse Capital calls require Shareholders and Investors to subscnbe in US dollars to the ssuance of additional Preference Shares and SPCs
Until utilised, capital drawn down 1s held on short term deposits and on the cument account

The following are the contractual matunties of financial habihties, including estmated interest payments and excluding the tmpact of netting

agreements

31 December 2009 Carrying Contractual 6mth orless 612 1-2 years 2-5years More than
Amount cash flows months 5 yoars
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Non-derivative financial labilities
Loans and bomowings 94,349 (97.0154)1 {57,087) {31.426) (8.851) - -
Trade and other payables 5814 (5,814} (5,814) - - - -
Provisions 291,890 (517,795) - {1,614) (5939) (504)  (509,738)
Subordinated preference certificates 350,671 (364,614) - - - - (364,614)
Preference shares 49,319 {49,319} - - - - (49,319)

[ 792,133 {1,034,606) {62,901} {33,040) {14,490) {504) (923,671) J
31 December 2008 Carrylng Contractual 6mth or less 612 1-2 years 2.5 years More
$000s Amount cash flows months than 5

years
Non-derlvative financial llabilities
Loans and borrowings 93,355 {95,355}’ (24,308) {71,047) - - -
Trade and other payables 17,104 (17,104) (17,104) - - - -
Provisions 323,255 (495,663) - - (975) {3.451) {491,237
Subordinated preference certificates 202,159 (293,086) - - - - {293,086)
Preference shares 46,593 {46,583) - - - - {46,593)

! 682,466 {947,801) (41,412) {71,047) {975) {3.451)  (830,916) |

'Loans and borrowings includes repayment of the term loan Facity B Payments are contingent upon production and the resuling cash
flows which are inherently difficult to forecast accurately  Additional details regarding the repayment of the factity 1s provided in Note 26

?post the balance sheet date, a review of decomnussioning labihties was camed out  The impacts of this review are discussed in Note 34
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18 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
$000 $000
Trade receivables 11,118 12 437
VAT recewable 1,016 5,011
| 12,134 17,448
All trade and other recevables at 31 December 2009 are not past due or impaired
19  Prepayments and accrued income
2008 2008
$0a0 $000
Prepayments 6,586 7.186
Accrued income 37,289 11,400
! 43,875 18,586

As at 31 December 2009 accrued income predominantly includes outstanding receipts from exercised hedging contracts, accrued oil sales,
and payment and guantity hifing adjustments
20. Assets held for sale

Dunng 2008 the Group actively marketed Licence F110 Block 16/20a Mabel Area [t was subsequently sold to BP subject to a Sales and
Purchase Agreement dated 23rd December 2008 which was completed on 20th March 2009 for a consideration of $3 5 milion The asset s
required to be disclosed at the lower of carrying value or fair value less costs to sell The carnang value of the Mabel asset at 31 December
2008 was $609,000 The gan recorded in the income statement dunng 2009 was $2,875,000 There were no disposals in 2008

21 Invantory

2009 2008

$000 $000

Marntenance and replacement spares 2,312 2 567
Qil inventories - 233
2,312 2,800

Inventones includes a prowvision of $909,000 (2008 $814,000) for consumables and maintenance stocks where it 1s considered that the
cammying value exceeds its net realisable value

22 Cash and short-term deposits

2009 2008
$000 $000
Cash at bank and in hand 31,951 27,909
Cash held in joint venture accounts 3,580 25 681
i 35,531 53,580 |

Cash held n joint venture accounts represent the Group share of total joint venture cash balances Restricted cash, other than cash held in
joint venture accounts at the end of 2008 and 2009 was $9 5 milion and §2 2 midlion respectively

23 Trade and other payables

2009 2008

$000 $000

Trade payables 3,704 4,194
Joint Venture creditors 2110 10,079

[ 5814 14,273

Trade payables are non-interest beanng and normally settied on 25-day terms For terms and condittons relating to related partes, refer to
Note 31 For the Group's credit nsk management process, refer to Note 17

24  Deferred Income and accruals

2009 2008

3000 $000

Deferred Income 23,499 13 832
Accruals 22,577 18,840

' 46,076 32672

Accruals include amounts held payable in joint venture entites of $19 1 million (2008 $7 S milion} For the year 2008, accruals also include
items relating to the acquisithon of the Dunlin Area Assets ($1 6 million)

Deferred income for the penod pnncipally relates to over-ift and under-lift positions associated with the entittements method of revenue
recognition

25 Provisions

Decommi- Defarred Contingent

For the year ended 2009 g payments payments Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2009 318,829 975 3,451 323,255
New or increased provisions - 5979 - 5,979
Unwinding of discount 13,358 95 - 13,454
Change in parameters (48,354) - - (48,354)
Deletions - - {2,549) {2,549)
Exchange adjustments - - 105 105
At 31 December 2009 283,834 7.049 1,007 291,890
Of which
Current - 1,614 503 2,17
Non-current 283,834 5,435 504 289,773
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For the year ended 2008 Decommi- Deferred Contingent
ssloning payments payments Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2008 - 902 4,100 5,002
New or increased provisions 306,607 - - 306,607
Unwinding of discount 9,192 73 149 9,414
Change in discount rate 3,030 - - 3030
Exchange adjustmenis - - {798) {798}
i_At 31 December 2008 318,829 975 3451 323,255 |
Of which
Current - 975 3.451 4,426
Non-current 318,829 - - 318,829

Decommissloning

Decommissioning labilites refate to abandonment prowvisions acquired as part of the acquisiion of Dunlin area fields and associated
investment in the Brent System and SVT The Group estmates the future removal costs of offshore oil and gas platforms, produchion facilities,
wells and pipelines at the tme of installaton of the assets This requires judgemental assumptions regarding removal date, future
environmental legislation, the extent of reclamation activites reguired, the engineenng methodology for estimating cost, removal cost, and
lability specific discount rates to determine the present value of these cash flows It has been assumed that derogation from the requirement
to remove the Duniin platform concrete grawity base will be granted by the Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) at a future
pointin ime  Key assumplions adopted are set out in the table below

2008 2008

Key assumptions
Proven and Proven and
Reserves base probable probable
Economic end date of Dunlin fields 2024 2019
Inflation 20% 25%
Discount rate 4 0% 4 0%

Deferred payments

An earn out payment of $1 million 1s payable to the former owner of the Crawford field upon attaining a certain level of ol production or the
sale of the field subsequent to submitting a development plan with a certain level of reserves being booked

The Group acquired the North West Hulton Area asset on 25 September 2009 for £16 msllion wath £12 mullion paid dunng 2009 and a further
£4 million payable in two future payments The first payment of £1 million 1s due at the earlier date of mobihisation of the ng or 31 July 2010
Management believe the ng will not be mobiised before this date The second payment 15 payable on Step 2 completion which has a back-
stop date of 31 December 2012 This component attracts interest from the date of the agreement up to Step 2 completion at the rate of
LIBOR plus 1% Management believe completion of Step 2 will occur in November 2011 The value of this second payment 1s approximately
£3 1 million and 1s discounted using Group's pre-tax lending cost of debt of 6 5%

Contingent payments

Contingent payments of $1 ¢ million at 31 December 2009 relate to the development of the Crawford field with payments tnggered in two
siages on DBERR approval of the field development plan and first ¢il

Dunng the year, previously recorded contingent payments relating to the Maureen Area and Crawford fields were derecognised as future
payments was no longer deemed probable to the value of $2 7 million This adjustment reduced the carrying value of related intangible
assets (refer to Note 13)

26 Loans and borrowings

Term Interest rate 2009 2008

$000 $000

Term loan {Facility “B™) 2013 LIBOR + 2 5% 74,349 69,046
Revolving credit (Facility *C") 2016 LIBOR + 2 5% 20,000 24,309

i 94,349 93 355

Facility “B” 1s a term loan faciity prowided by Financial Services North Sea Ltd (“FSNS™), a subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation, to Fairfield
Betula Limited and Fairfield Fagus Limited The facility 1s recorded at amortised cost in accordance with I1AS 39 repayable from after-tax cash
flows, less financing costs 14 days after each quarter end The amortised coslt 1s adjusted at each reporting date to reflect changes in
anbcipated cash flows Following the full repayment of this facility and the cash collateralization of Facility A discussed below, the provider 1s
enitled to an ovemnding royalty interest in the future production of Dunlin Area assets ranging between 1% and 2 5% The obligation s
determined based on many interrelated assumptions that makes it impractcal to disclose the possible effects of changes to these
assumptions and other aspects of uncertainty Consequently, 1t 1s reasonably possible that cutcomes within the next financial year could
require a matenal adjustment to the carrying value of the facility The face value of the loan outstanding at 31 December 2009 was $720
million (2008 $72 O million)

As the facility 1s payable based on aperating cash flows which are vanable on, amongst others, the ol price, IAS 1 requires the loan to be
classified as a current iability irrespective of the pnncipal repayment dates The faciity expires during 2013

Facility C 15 a revolving $25 million credit faciity provided by FSNS to Faurfield Betula Limited The terms of this agreement require this facility
to be repaid in full twice a year with a resting penod of at least five successive business days  The facility expires tin 2016

Decommissioning provisions and guarantees

Facility "A” is a $273 milion decommissioning guarantee faciity provided by Guarantee Services North Sea Lid (a Mitsubishi Corporation
subsidiary referred to as "“GSNS”) to secura the Group's share of the Dunlin Area decommissioning liabilites  Facility A, 1s a guarantee that
does not meet the defintion of a borrowing under IFRS and consequently 1s not recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position
Facility A incurs a guarantee fee paid quarterly at 3 75% (2008 3 75%)

In the future, the decommissioning letters of credit will be progressively cash collateralised by the Group following the repayment of Faciiity B
with a reduction in the size of the guarantee from GSNS to the letter of credit provider with a corresponding reduction in Facility “A”

The terms of this agreement require this facility to be repaid in full twice a year with a resting penod of al least five successive business days
The facility expires in 2016

An extemnal review of the Group's decommissiorung labilibes was camed out subsequent to the reporting period The impact of this review 1s
set out in Note 34
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27  Subordinated preference certificates and preference shares

The Group 1s financed predomunantly by debt instruments referred to as investment stnps  Each investment stnp 1s 1ssued with a nominal

value of $10 00 and contains the following two components
. Subordinated preference certificates (SPCs) with an i1ssue price

of $9 80, and

. “A” ar “B” preference shares with an issue pnce at $0 10 with nominal value of $0 01 and a share premium of $0 03 Preference shares
designated as “A” are held by current or former employees or directors whereas "B” preference shares are 1ssued to insttuttonal hotders

i SPCs

SPCs are valued at amortised cost less directly attnbutable transaction costs  The nibial cost allocated to the SPC 1s determined based on
the far value assigned to the SPC instrument out of the total investment stnp SPCs pay an annual coupen of eight percent which 1s
capitalised until the earlier of redemption or the eighth-year anriversary Following the eighth-year anniversary, all outstanding debt attracts an
increased coupen interest rate of 14 percent  The redemption date has been based on an estimated date of an Initial Public Offenng where it

is anticipated that the SPC funding will convert into ordinary share ca

pital

The Group concluded that the farr value for 2009 1ssuances was approximately $9 73 (2008 $9 30} As at 31 December 2009, the estmated

conversion date for all SPC instruments was 30 June 2010 (2008 31 December 2011)

2009 2009 2008 2008
Number of
sharas $000 Numbar of shares $000
Iribval fair value
At 1 January 20,902,008 161,115 12,861 208 86,311
New issues 10,028,325 97,558 8,040,800 74,804
At 31 December 30,930,333 258,673 20,902,008 161 115
Capitahsed interost
At 1 January 41,044 10,705
Capitahised interest for the penod 50,513 30,109
Unwinding of transaction costs 441 230
At 31 December 91,998 41,044
i 350,671 202,159 1

The increase i camrying value of the SPCs from $202 2 million to $350 7 milion 15 mainly due to the 1ssue of 10,028,325 new shares The
interest charge for the penod was $50 5 mulion (2008 $30 1 muilion} and transaction costs were $441,000 (2008 $230,000) The interest

relating to each pericd 1s as follows

2009 2008

$000 $000

2006/2007 1ssues discounted at 15% 18,214 15,891
2008/2009 1ssues discounted at 10% 13,845 6184
_Impact of redemption date changes 18,394 8,034
Total 50,513 30,109

i Preference shares

Preference shares hold one vote per share at Board meetings and have an equal nght to other ordinary share capital holders to a share of any
profit distrbution, as if all classes of share constituted one class of share, according to the number of shares held Preference shares will
automatically convert to ordinary shares upon the occurrence of the earlier of {a) a lisbng of the Company's shares and which raises gross

preceeds of at least $50 million and (b) when a requisite majonty of the preference shareholders requires the Company to so convert

Preference shares are classified as a non-current hability (as opposed to equity) due to a ‘down round’ protection feature that exsts in the
terms of the instruments This feature provides a mechamsm to adjust the conversion ratio of the preference shares in the event that certain
types of shares are issued at a pnce below the cumrent conversion pnce (defined under the articles of association as the amount paid to the
Company in respect of the allotment and 1ssue of each preference share, including share premium, which i1s equal to $0 10 per share} Under
the mechamsm the preference share holder could be compensated for loss in the value of their shares and therefore the nsks and rewards of
the preference share holders are not aligned to those of a holder of ordinary shares The feature 1s an embedded denvatve and valued in
accordance with IAS 39 which has the effect of allocating value between the embedded dernvative and the 1ssued preference shares At 31

December 2009, the fair value of this feature 1s nil (2008 nil)

Authonsed preference shares at the end of the reporting penod

2009 2009 2008 2008
Number of shares $000 Number of shares 3000
A preference shares at nominal value ($0 01 each) 10,200,800 102 10,200,800 102
B preference shares at nominal value ($0 01 each) 2,080 000,000 20,800 2,080,000,000 20,800
2,090,200,800 20,902 2,090,200,800 20,902

Preference shares onissue at the end of the reporting penod
2009 2009 2008 2008
Number of shares $000 Number of shares $000
A preference shares at nominal value ($0 01 each) 130,333 1 102,008 1
A preference share premium ($0 09 each} As above 227 As above 218
B preference shares at nominal value ($0 01 each) 30,800,000 308 20,600,000 208
B preference share premium {$0 09 each) As above 48,783 As above 46,165

30,930,333 49,319 20,902,008 46,593 |

Dunng the year the Company 1ssued 28,325 (2008 40,800) "A" Preference Shares and 10,000,000 (2008 8,000,000) “B" Preference Shares

Thae far value assigned to "A” and "B" preference shares was $7,699 (2008 $28,000) and $2 7 milion (2008 $5 6 mullion) respectively
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Return of Capital Rights

In the event of a return on capital on kquidation (except on a purchase by the Company of any shares) or, unless otherwise agreed by a
Requisite Majonty of Preference Shareholders (see below), the sale of 50% of the investment strips in the Company to a third party or the sale
of substantrally all of the Group's business and assets (as more fully defined in the Articles of Association and defined as a Liquidation Event),
any proceeds from liquidation shall be distnbuted in the following order of pnonty

a) SPCs - payment of capital and unpaid yield

b) Prelerence Shares - payment of the i1ssue pnce and any unpaid distnbutions
¢) Ordinary Shares - payment of the issue pnce and any unpaid distnbutions
d) Any residual amount shall be distnbuted amongst the holders of Preference and Qrdinary Shares according to the number of shares

hetd

Dunng 2009 additional debt was raised via investment stnps amounting to $100 3 million {2008 $804 million) Of this amount, $97 5 mullton

(2008 $74 8 milkon) was assigned to the fair value of the SPCs and $2 8 million {2008 $5 6 millton) to the value of preference shares

28  issued capital and reserves

Authonsed and fully paid 1ssued capital 1s as follows

2009 2009 2008 2008
Numbhar of shares $000 Number of shares $000
Founder ordinary shares ($0 01 each)
Authonsed 230,000,000 2,300 230,000,000 2,300
Allotted, calted-up and fully paid 2,300,080 23 2,300,090 23
“A" ordinary shares ($0 01 each)
Authorised 311,730,800 3INvz 311 730,800 3,117
Allotted, called-up and fully paid - - - -
“B" ordinary shares ($0 01 each)
Authorised 2,080,000,000 20,800 2,080,000,000 20,800
Allotted called-up and fully paid - - - -
Reconciliation of movements in equity
Founder shares Cash flow hedge Foreign Retained Total equity
raserve currency deficit
translation
2009 rasarve
$000 3000 $000 $000 $000
At January 2009 221 62 664 (12,831) {71,378} {21,325)
Denvative change in value - (40,609) - - (40,609)
Share- based payment - - - 2,200 2,200
Foreign currency - - 4,933 - 4,933
Total loss for the penod - - - {64,053} (64,053)
221 22,055 (7.898) (133,232} {118,854) |
Founder shares Cash flow hadge Fareign Retained Total aquity
raserve currency deficlt
translation
2008 reserve
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At January 2008 221 - (615) (49 754) (50,148)
Denvative change in value - 62,664 - - 62,664
Share- based payment - - - 1,469 1,469
Foreign cumency - - (12,216) - {12,216)
Total loss for the perod - - - {23,094) {23,094)
221 62,664 (12,831) (71.379) {21,325) |

Share capltal

Share capital includes the total net proceeds (both nominal value and share premwm) on i1ssue of the Company's equity share capital,

compnsing $0 01 Founder Shares
Cash flow hedge reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change {net of tax) m the farr value of cash flow hedging
mnstruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve compnses all foreign cumrency differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiary companies which have a different presentation currency {o the Group
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29  Capital management

The pnmary objective of the Group's capital management i1s to ensure financial stability, manage financial nsks and secure the Group's short-
term and long-term need of capital  The Group's defines its capital as equity, compnsing of shares, SPCs and reserves

The Group manages its capial structure and makes adjusiments to it, tn ight of changes i economic condiions To mantain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group calls on cash from its investors in the form of investment stnps

The Group manages its short-term capital requirements by producing monthly cash flow forecasts and management accounts and making
capital structure adjustments as constdered necessary Management of the medium to long-term capital requirements of the Group is
monitored by the Board by way of the Annual Budget and 3 year forecast

Through the Subscnption and Sharehofders’ Agreement, the Group's Investors and Founders have committed to provide capital of up to
$404 8m by the 1ssuance of Founder Shares, Preference Shares and SPCs of which $300 milion was subscnbed at the year end (2008
$201 2 milion) The $404 8m 1s made up of an onginal $201 2m of Investment stnps and a further $203 6 million (2008 $203 6 milion) which
was agreed on 12 March 2008 At 31 December 2009 the total of agreed undrawn borrowing faciites was $108 5 million {2008 - $173 5
milion) Since the balance sheet date, a further $10 million of capital was subscnbed following a capital call notice 1ssued on 12 Apnl 2010

30 Share-based payments

Senior executive and employee share option plan

The Board may grant share options to employees and Directors in accordance with The Fairfield Energy Limited Management Share Option
Scheme ("Scheme”) The exercise pnce Is set out in the Scheme and vanes on the level of capital that Investors have subscnbed to in the
form of Preference Shares and SPCs in accordance wath the Subscrniption and Shareholders’ Agreement ("SSA”)

Options granted have standard vesting conditions with twenty percent vesting on the grant date and on each of the following four annual
anniversanes a further twenty percent 1s vested The opbons have no performance conditions  In the event of a iquidation {or similar event),
any options which have not yet vested will automatically vest in full and may be exercised immedsately pnor to (and conditional upon) the
occurrence of that event A listing of the Company, unless otherwise determined by the Board, does not accelerate the vesting of the options
If any option holder leaves the Company, vested options must be exercised within three months unless employments ceases through death or
il health In these mstances, all options vest immediately with an expiry date of 12 months from the grant date The total number of ordinary
share options that can be ssued cannot exceed 15% of the 1ssued preference shares at any time  All options granted are equity-settled

Expense and movements during the year

The expense ansing from equity-settled share based payments dunng the year was $1,976,000 (2008 $1,395,000) The expense ansing
from cash-based setffements totalled $224,000 (2008 $74,000)

A reconciliation of the options on 1ssue 15 set out In the table below

2009 2009 2008 2008
Optlon valus Option valuo
Number of shares {$/shara) Number of shares ($!share)

Quistanding at 1 January
Exercise price $5 00 1,408,700 - 825,000 -
Exercise pnce $12 00 589,500 - 75,000 -

Granted during the year

February 2008 - Exercise price $5 00 - - 108,900 887
December 2008 - Exercise pnce $5 00 - - 474,800 14
December 2008 - Exercise pnce $12 00 - . 514,500 103
July 2009 - Exercise price $5 00 914,450 173 - -
July 2009 - Exercise price $12 00 1,034,850 121 - -
Quistanding at 31 December 3,947,500 - 1,998,200 -
Exercisable at 31 December 1,444,140 - 654,640 -

The Group Is an unlisted entity and consequently does not have a recogmised market prnce for its ordinary shares or histonc share price
volatility data which can readily be determined for use withun option pricing models  An independent actuary has measured the farr value of
the oplons using a binomial pncing model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were issued The
maximum term of the options granted i1s ten years

The weighted average rematning contractual life of options granted dunng the year was 9 5 years (2008 9 2 years) The weighted average far
value of options granted dunng the year was $1 45 (2008 $1 97)

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the plan for the year ended 31 December

2009 2008
Implled equity vatue ($) 3186 250
Share return volatiity (%) 100 100
Dwvidend yield (%) - -
Comparable group share volatility (%) 45t 79 5010 65
Risk-free interest rate (%) 26 16t031
Expected Iife of share options (years) 3t 35 e 35

The expected iife of share options i1s based on current expectations and 1s not necessanly indicative of exercise pattemns that may occur

31 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group contracts out to recogmsed personal pension schemes which are defined contnbuton schemes The expense charged to the

Income Statement for the period amounted to

2009 2008
$000 $000
Pension costs expensed to the Income statement 1,201 1,203
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32  Related party disclosures
a) Equity interests

The financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and the subsidianes listed in the following table
% Equity Interost
200

Name Country of Incorporation 2009

Fairfield Energy Limited England 100% 100%
Fairfield Energy Heldings Limited England 100% 100%
Falrfield Acer Limited England 100% 100%
Fairfield Betula Limited England 100% 100%
Fairfield Cedrus Limuted England 100% 100%
Fairfleld Fagus Limited England 100% 100%

b} Transactions with related parties

Apan from transactions relating to SPCs, preference shares and key management personnel compensaton, there were no transactons with
related parties durning the year ended 31 December 2009

c) The ultimate parent

Fairfield Energy Limited 15 the ulbtmate parent entity within the Group Company financtal statements follow the Consolidated financial
statements on pages 43 to 53

d) Entity with significant influence over the Group

At 31 December 2009 by virtue of a 36% (2008 36%) sharehotding, the only entity with significant influence was Warburg Pincus LLC
e) Joint venture in which the Group Is a venturer

Joint venture relationships are disclosed in Note 18

i Compensation of key management personnel

IAS 24 defines key management personnel as those persons having authonty and responstbility for planning, directing and controlling the
actvittes of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity The key management
personnel of the Group 15 considered to be the directors Key management compensation 1s hsted in the following table

2009 2008

$000 $000

Short-term benefits 722 876
Post-employment benefits 67 63
Termination benefits - -
Share-based paymenis 619 261
Total 1,408 1,200

Mark Francis McAllister is the only director accruing penston benefits under the defined contnbution plan
ii  Dwrectors’ interests in the Senior Executive Plan
All staff and employees are members of the same Share Option Scheme Refer to Note 30 for additonal information

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the highest paid Director was Mark Francis McAllister with a total remuneration of $463,000 (2008 -
$483,000)

33 Commitments, contingencies and guarantees

Capital and other commitments

At 31 December 2009, the Group was party io gross capital and other commitments of $25 ¢ million (2008 $255m} These commitments
include both capital and operaling contractual obligations

Contingencies

The Group does nol have any contingent labilites other than the contingent habiliues recorded in the Group's statement of financtal positron
as descnibed in Note 25 as at 31 December 2009 In 2008, the Group had a commitment to pay approximately £3 1 milion upon first ol
preduction from the Maureen Field However, in 2009 this field was deemed a dry well and subsequently impasred As a resutt it is improbable
that this commitment will be payable by the Group

Guarantees
At 31 December 2009 the Group had the following guarantees

a} A letter of credit with Esso Exploration and Production UK Limited to safeguard them as co-owners of Sullom Vee Terminal, in the event
that the Group overlifts from the terminal and 1s subsequently unable to repay the resulling value of the oIl This 1s recorded as cash on
hand

b}  Aletter of credit provided to secure the Group's decommissioning habilities with the Dunlin area fields (refer to Note 25)
The above-listed guarantees were also in place at 31 December 2008

34  Events after the reporting period

Dunng the first half of 2010, the Company entered into s annual review of its decommissiorung habilites n accordance with the
decommissioning cost provision deed {DCPD) held with the former owners of the Dunlin Area Assets The review involves an independent
expert evaluattng the present value of its future decommissioning costs associated with the Dunlin Area which forms the basis of the level of
secunty Fairfield 1s required to hold in respect of the future remediation costs The preliminary findings of the expert indicate a present cost of
the future works of $510 mition, in line with the estimate assumed for the decommussioning habiliies recorded on the Group's Statement of
Financial Posibion (refer to Note 25)  Although this review 15 not expected to be finalised until the end of June 2010, the Company signed an
agreement to make available additonal secunty of $77 million in 2610 in order to provide cerfainty over the cash secunly required The
secunty will be cash collateralised from additional debt faciiies At 31 December 2009, the Company has a lefter of credit facility of $273
million in place to cover its future decommissicning costs (refer to Note 26)

On 12 Apnl 2010, a further capital call to subordinated preference certificate and preference share holders was completed giving nse to the
subscnplon of an addiional $10 0 million

The Group repaid $18 6 milllon on 14 January 2010 and $2 3 million on 14 Apnl 2010 of its term loan Facility B
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the Company
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and those Intematicnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unmion

The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial
positton, financial performance and cash flows of the Company for that penod In prepanng those financial
statements, the Directors are required to

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s Present informatien, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information,

+« Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insuffictent to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance, and

« State that the Company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial positton of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements and, having a reasonable expectation that the
Company have adequate resources to contnue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, will continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts

Having made the requisite enquines, so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as
defined by Section 418(3) of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and the
directors have taken all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

AN

Mark McAllister
Chief Executive Officer

Date L‘. TM:.. 20 to
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Independent auditor’s report

TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRFIELD ENERGY LIMITED

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Faufield Energy Limited for the year ended 31 December 2009
which compnse the Company Income Statement, the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, Company Statement
of Fmancial Position, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Cash Flows and the related
notes 1 to 18 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicable law and
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an audstor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilites Statement set out on page 41, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view  Our
responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements
¢ Give a true and farr view of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 December 2009 and of its loss for the year
then ended,
+ Have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
+ Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimon on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given In the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
In our opinion
* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audt have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or
The parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or
e Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
We have not received all the information and explanations we requrre for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Fairfield Energy Limited for the year ended 31 December
2009

Conl s

Ken Willamson (Senior statutory itor)
for and on behalf of Ernst &Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
4‘ TUIV{ 1Lo0/0
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Company income statement
for the year ended 31 December

| 2009 I 2008
Notes ! $000 | $000
|
Revenue - f -
Cost of sales - (5)
|
Gross (loss) - (5
Administrative expenses (25,523) (21,385)
Other operating income 41 22,067 16,301
Operating {loss) ' (3,456) ' {5,089)
|
\
\
Finance income 4m i 8,845 | 1,080
Finance costs 4iv {50,981) (56,363)
I !
(Loss) from operations before tax . {45,592) | (60,392)
|
Income tax expense 5 - -
|
(Loss) after tax | {45,592) {60,392)
Company statement of comprehensive income
far the year ended 31 December
;T 2009 2008
Notes ' $000 | $000
| |
{Loss) for the period | {45,592) ' (60,392)
| (
|
Other comprehensive income - -
i
Other comprehensive income, net of tax t - | -
[ i
Total comprehensive income ! (45,592) | (60,392)

43 of 55




Fairfield Energy Limited Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2009

Company statement of financial position

as at 31 December

Notes . 2009 1 2008
! $000 $000
Non-current assets 1
Property, plant and equipment 6 ‘ 891 ' 1,277
Intangible assets 7 ‘ 827 ' 125 i
Investments 8 8,743 8,743
Intercompany lcans 9 254,243 148,742
264,704 158,887
Current assots . :
Trade and other recevables 9 ' 8,882 . 4,803
Prepaymenis and accrued income ' 575 ' 430
Cash and short-term deposits 10 5,542 | 14,393
’ 14,999 19,626
1
Total assets : 279,703 | 178,513
Non-current liabilities |
Subardinated preference certificates 13 350,871 202,159
Preference shares 13 49,319 ! 48,593
{ 399,990 | 248,752
| |
Current liabilities \
Trade and other payables o 2,469 9,608
Deferred income and accruals 2,363 ' 1,005
Provisicns 12 1,000 975
5,832 | 12,488
Total liabilities 405,822 1\ 261,240
NET (L1ABILITIES} , (126,119) | (82,727)
' |
Equlty ' !
Founder shares 14 | 23 J 23
Founder share premium 14 198 t 198
Retamned deflcit 14 | {126,340) , (82948)
TOTAL EQUITY | (126,119} | {82,727)

Mark McAllister
Chief Executive Officer

Date Y Tune 2010
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December

‘ Founder share
Notes  Founder shares premium Retalned deficit Total
$000 $000 $0C0 $000 |
At 1 January 2009 23 188 (82,048) {82,727)
Total comprehensive Income - - (45,592} (45,592)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly i equity
Share-based payment transactions 14 - - 2,200 2,200
|
Balance at 31 December 2009 14 23 198 (126,340) (126,119} |
for the year ended 31 December
Founder share
Notes Founder shares premium Retained deficit Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2008 23 198 {24,025) (23,804)
Total comprehensive income - (60,392} (60,392}
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Share-based payment transactions 14 - 1,469 1,469
Balance at 31 December 2008 14 23 198 (82,948) (82,727)
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Company statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December

‘ 2009 ] 2008
Notes . $000 : $000
Operating activities :
{Loss) / Profit before tax (45,592) ' (60,392)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 44 745 766
Discount unwind 25 -
Share-based payments . 2,200 1,469
SPC interest expense div 50,054 | 30,339
Net finance costs (76) 19,285
Working capital adjustments ' i
{Increase) / decrease n trade and other receivables {4,125) 11,804
{Increase) / decrease in prepayments and accrued income ' (145} -
Increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables {6,637) 6,629
Net cash inflow from operating actlvities | {2,651) | 9,900
Investing activities ! !
Interest received 78 ! 1,040
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment ! {304) | (944)
Expenditure cn intangible assets : {757) i 74
Increase N intercompany recervables | (105,501) ! {96,373)
Net cash outflow from Investing activitles {106,484) : {96,351}
. \
Financing activities ’
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 2,726 ! 5,604
Proceeds from issue of SPCs 97,558 | 74,804
Net cash inflow from financing activitles 100,284 80,408
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,851} 1‘ (6,043)
Net foreign exchange difference - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the penod 14,393 20,436
|
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the perlod 10 5,542 ! 14,393
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

a) Reporting entity

Fairfield Energy Limited 1s pnncipally engaged n administering the
Group's acbwvities in the appraisal, development and production of
hydrocarbon accumulattons The financial statements for the year
ended 31 December were authonsed for 1ssue In accordance with
a resolution of the directors on 29 April 2010 The Company 1s a
imited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales
The registered office 1s located at Ash House, Staines, Middlesex,
United Kingdom

b} Basis of preparation

The financal statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2009 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union (EU) and as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Compantes Act 2006 The accounting polictes
adopted are consistent with those applied in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 Certain
reclassifications of prior year disclosures have been made to
increase comparability and understandabiity of the financial
statements These are set out in Note 3

¢} Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance wath Internattonal Financial Reportng Standards
{IFRS) and adopted by the EU

d) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal
cost convention except for certain financial assets and habilites
that have been measured at far value

e} Presentation and functional currencies

The financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which i1s also the Company's functonal currency The financial
statements are rounded to the nearest thousand (3000} unless
stated otherwise

f) Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are ntally recorded by the
Company in US dollars at the spot exchange rate  Monetary
assets and habilites denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date

g) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment i1s stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciaton and any provisions for mparment, if any
Depreciation 15 calculated on a straight-lne basis over the
estimated useful Iife of the asset as follows

IT equipment 3 years
Furniture and fitings 3 years
Software 3 years
g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on imbal recognition at cost and
carmed net of accumulated depreciaton  Gans or losses ansing
from de-recegniion of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement
when the asset 1s derecognised Depreciation 1s calculated on a
straight-ine basis over an estmated useful ife of 3 years

h) Investments

Investments are nitially recognised at the cost of acquisition and
camed net of accumulated depreciation and any provisions for
impairment, The assels are amortised based on unis of
production

i} Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewvables, including receivables from refated
partes, are mitially recogrised at far value and subsequently
measured at amortsed cost less an allowance for uncollectable
amounts Collectability and imparment are assessed on a regular
basis Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against other expenses in the income statement

i}y Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or construchive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that
an outflow of resources embodying ecocnomic benefits will be
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required to settle the obligation and a reliable estmate can be
made of the amount of the obligatton If the effect of the tme value
of money 1s matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropnate, the nsks specific to the
llabiity Where discounting 15 used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of tme is recognised as a finance cost

A contingent hability 15 disclosed where the eustence of an
obligaton will only be confirmed by future events or where the
amount of the cbhigation cannot be measured relrably except where
the contingent liability results as part of a business combination

k) Subordinated Preference Certificates (SPC} and
convertible preference shares
The Company issues financal mstruments referred to as

investment stnps  These instruments are required to be accounted
for as financral habihties under IAS 39 Each investment strp
contains two components SPCs and “A” or “B” preference shares
The SPCs are measured at amortsed cost The difference
between the net proceeds and amortised cost equate to the
preference share value Refer to Note 12 for further detail

) Share-based payment transactions

Employees (including senior execubves} and Directors of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments ('equity-settied transactions’)

Equity settled transactions

The cost of equity seftled transactons with employees and
Directors are measured by reference to the far value at the date at
which they are granted and are recogrused as an expense over the
vestng penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant
holders become fully entitted to the award Far value 15
determined by an independent external valuer using an appropnate
pricing model  In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account I1s
taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the
price of the shares of the Company (market conditions}

No expense I1s recogrised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting i1s conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting rrespective of whether or
not the market condiion I1s satsfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied

Forfeiture as defined n IFRS 2 and the specific conditons of the
Group's share based payments refers to the falure to satisfy
vesting condittons other than market conditions The farr values
determined by the ndependent valuer do not make any advance
allowance for employees leaving service before the vesting date
and forfeiting therr optons However, where employees leave
before vestng, the expenses in the relevant period reflect the
actual expenence of leavers before vesting

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense
15 caleulated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod
has expred and the managements best estmate of the
achievement or otherwise of non-market conditons number of
equity nstruments that will ulttmately vest or in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as
descnbed above The mavement in cumulative expense since the
previous balance sheet date 1s recognised in the mcome
statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

m) Financial instruments

Loans and other recevablos

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market are
classified as foans and recevables Loans and recewvables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any mpairment Trade and other recewvables are recognised
when tnvoiced

Bank deposits

Bank deposits with an onginal matunty of over three months are
held as a separate category of current asset and presented on the
face of the statement of financial position

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position
compnse cash at bank and on hand, restricted cash holdings (cash
held in joint ventures and escrow accounts) and short-term
deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less
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Trade payables and other non derivative financial habiities
Trade payables and other creditors are non-interest bearing and
are measured at cost.

n) Deferred Income tax

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s recogmsed on temporary differences ansing
between the tax base of assets and lhiab:htes and ther carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements

A deferred mcome tax liability 1s not recogmised if a temporary
difference anses on nbial recognitton of an asset or iabiity in a
transaction (other than a business combinatan), that at the tme of
the transacton, affects neither, accounbng nor taxable profit or
loss

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that i is
probable that future income tax profit will be avalable against
which the temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred 1ncome tax 1s provided on temporary differences arising
on mvestments In subsidianes, jointly controlled enttes and
associates, except where the tming of the temporary difference
can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and labilites are measured based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substanbvely enacted at the statement of
financial position date Deferred tax llabiites may be offset against
deferred tax assets within the same tax entbty and tax jurisdiction
Measurement of deferred tax habihties and assets reflect the tax
consequences expected to anse from the manner in which the
asset or hlability 1s recovered or settled

o) Pension and other post-employment benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme
Amounts payable to the pension plan are charged to the income
statement in the same penod in which the services have been
rendered by the employees

2 Cntical accounting judgements

a) Cntical judgements in applying the Company’s
accounting policies

1 SPCs and preference shares

SPCs and preference shares are funding instruments sourced from
private equity The value of these instruments 1s based on
estmated future cash flows and are impacted by the expected
conversion date As at the balance sheet date, the Company has
made the judgment that conversion will occur on the expected
Inittal Public Offering date, May 2010
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3 Reclassifications
i Reclassifications

The Company has made certain reclassifications to the presentation set out within in its 2008 financial stalements to assist users of its financial
statements Significant reclassifications are descnbed below

Company Income Statement

. Foreign exchange gawns and losses — Realised and unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses have been reclassified from administrative
expenses to edither finance income or finance costs  This reclassification has been made to help users of the accounts to better understand
changes to administrative expenses by removing fluctuations caused only by foreign exchange The impacts of these changes are disclosed
In notes 4v and 4v, and

. Intracompany revenues generated from the recharging of labour costs have been ellminated against the appropnate ine tems wathin
administrative expense The impact of this change was to reduce other income and reduce administrative costs by $2 3 million

Company Statement of Financial Position

. Prepayments and accrued income, and deferred income and accruals — The Company has disaggregated these cumrent assets and cumrent
labiibes from trade and other recewvables and trade and other payables respectively, to be consistent with the presentation of the Group
Statement of Financial Position  The impact of these changes on the Company financial statements can be dentified on the face of the
Statement of Financial Positton and wathin notes 9 and 11

Company Statement of Cash Flows

. Grouping of similar items — The number of ine items on the Statement of Cash Flows has been reduced by grouping ssmilar items together
This principle has been applied to finance ncome and finance cost items and depreciation and amortisation

[T} Other presentation changes

Certain presentational changes have been made to assist users of the financial statements These changes include

. The Company accounts of Farfield Energy Limited have been presented separately following the censclidated financial statements to
simplfy the presentation: of the accounts, and

. A Slatement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared in accordance with to the revised Intematonal Accounting Standard tAS 1 The
presentation of this statement impacts the presentation of the statement of changes 1n equity The impacts of these changes can be seen on
the face of the respective financial statements

4. Other income / expenses

1 Other operating income

2009 2008
$000 3000
Joint venture recovenes 15,348 9,729
Other income 6,719 6,572
| Total other operating Income 22,067 16,301 '
ii Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
2009 2008
$000 $000
Inctuded in administrative expenses
Amortisation of intangible assets 55 42
Depreclatlon of property, plant and equipment 690 724
| Total depreciation, depletion and amortisation 745 766 J
in Finance income
2009 2008
$000 $000
Interest income 78 1060
Foreign exchange gaing 8,767 -
| Total finance income 8,845 1,060
iv Finance costs
2009 2008
$000 3000
Interest on loans and other finance costs 2 14
Interest on SPCs {See Note 26) 50,954 30 339
Discount unwinding 25 72
Amortisation of SPC transaction costs (Note 26} - -
Foreign exchange losses - 25,038
i Total finance costs 50,981 56,363 |

v Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company's financial statements were $318,423 (2008 $527,615) Remuneration
receivable by the Company’s auditors for the supply of other services to the Company 1s not presented in the Company financial statements as
this information 1s provided in the consolidated financial statemenis
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vi Employse henefits expense

2009 2003
$000 $000
Wages and salarnes 6,781 7,191
Bonuses 1,013 1,110
Social secunty costs 1,079 1,007
Pension costs 1,201 1,203
Insurange (medical and ie) 2 167
Share-based paymenits 1,582 1,469
[ 11,658 12,147 ]
Average number of employees
Directors 2 2
Finance and administration 19 13
Technical 28 27
49 42 J

Addtional information regarding the remuneration of key management is set out in Note 32w

5 Income tax

The major components of ncome tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are

i Income statement

There was no income tax charge for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

il Statement of comprehensive income

There were no deferred tax items charged directly or credited within equity for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

A reconcihation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the UK standard income tax rate for the year ended 31

December 2009 1s as follows

2009 2008

$000 $000
Accounting loss before income tax (45,592) (60,392)
Accounting loss multrpleed by the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 28% {Group) (12,767) {17,212)
Expenditure not deductible for tax purposes 14,297 8,816
Non-taxable income {1,800) -
Benefit of previously unrecognised temporary differences (950) -
Temporary differences not recognised 710 553
Losses camed forward not recognised - 7,774
Group relief for no consideration 510 69

L

il

The Company has tax losses of $17 9 mllion (2008 $35 8 million) which arose tn the UK and available indefinitely for offset against future taxable
profits of the Company Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they are not expected to cffset taxable profits

in the Company n the foreseeable future The above has been adjusted for amounts relating to share based payments

6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held by the Company is disclosed in Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements

7 Intangible assets

Websits costs Software Total
$000 $000 $000
Year ended 31 December 2009
Net camying amount at 1 January 2008 125 B 125
Addibons B 757 757
Amortisation and impairment charge (55) - {55)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 70 757 827 |
At 31 December 2009
Histoncal cost 187 757 924
Accumulated amorlisation (87) - (97)
|__Net carrying amount 70 757 827 |
Year ended 31 December 2008
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2008 83 - 93
Addibions 74 - 74
Amortisation and impairment charge {42) - (42)
I_Carrying amount at 31 December 2008 125 - 125 |
At 31 Dacember 2008
Histoncal cost 167 - 187
Accumulated amortisation (42) - (42)
Net camying amount 125 - 125 |
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8 Investments

2009 2008
$000 $000
Invesiments in subsidianes 8,743 8,743
|_Carrying amount at 31 December 8,743 8,743 |
Investments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows
% of voting
rights and
Name of subsidiary sharas held Nature of business
Fairfield Energy Holdings Limited Ordinary shares 100% Holding company
Fairfield Acer Lumited Ordinary shares 100% Qil and gas exploration
Fairfield Betula Limited Ordinary shares 100% Ol and gas exploration
Fairfield Cedrus Limited COrdinary shares 100% Qi and gas exploration
Faurfield Fagus Limited Ordinary shares 100% Qiland gas exploraton
All subsidiaries are Incorporated and operating in the UK The Company accounts for its investments in subsidianes using the cost model
9. Trade and other receivables
2009 2008
Current $000 3000
Trade and other recevables 5,694 4,480
VAT recevable 188 323
[ 8,882 4,803 |
Non-current
Loans receivable from mter-group entities 254,243 148,742
: 254,243 148,742 |
10. Cash and short-term deposits
2009 2008
$000 3000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,542 14393
| 5,542 14,393 |
11 Trade and other payables
2009 2008
$000 $000
Trade payables 2,036 9,296
Cther payables 433 312
| 2,469 9,608
12 Provisions
2009 2008
$000 $000
Net camying amount at 1 January 975 202
New or increased provisions - -
Unwinding of discount 25 73
[ 1,000 975 |

Deferred payments

An eam out payment of $1 million is payable to the former owner of the Crawford Field upon attaining a certain leve! of o1l production, upon the
sale of the field or when a certain level of oil reserves are booked on a proved and probable basis

13 Subordinated preference certificates and preference shares
The Subordinated preference certificates and preference shares of the Company match those disclosed under the Group accounts See Note 27
on page 36 of the consolidated financia! statements for further details

14 Issued capital and reserves

Authonsed and fully paid 1ssued capilal i1s as follows

2009 2009 2008 2008
Number of shares $000 Number of shares $000
Founder erdinary shares {($0 01 each)

Authonsed 230,000,000 2,300 230,000,000 2,300
Allotted, called-up and fully paid 2,300,090 23 2,300,090 23

Reconciliation of movements in equity
Found R d deficit Total equity

shares
2009 4000 $000 $000
At January 2009 221 (82,948) {82,727)
Share- based payment - 2,200 2,200
Total loss for the perlod - {45 592) {45,592)
i 221 (126,340) (126,119) |
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Founder shares Retained deficit Total equity
2008 $000 $000 $000
Al January 2008 221 (24,025) (23,804)
Share- based payment - 1,469 1,469
Total loss for the perod - {60,392) (60,392)

| 221 {82,948) (82,727)

Share-based payments of the Company match those disclosed under the Group accounts See Note 30 on page 38 of the consolidated financial

statemenits for further details

15 Financial assets and liabilities

a) Fair value of financial assets and habilities

Management beligves that for all financial assets and liabilities, other than the SPCs, that the carrying amount of the assets and llabiiies equates
therr farr value Set out below 15 a companson by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Company's financial instruments that
are camed n the financial statements

Carrying Amount Falr Value

2009 2008 2009 2008

$000 $000 $000 5000
Financial labiitres
Trade and other payables 2,469 9,608 2,469 9,608
Deferred iIncome and accruals 2,361 1,905 2,361 1,805
Prowisions (current) 1,000 975 1000 975
SPCs 350,671 202,159 353,212 220,200
Preference shares 49,319 46,593 244,350 129,592
Financial assefs
Trade and other recevables 3,886 4803 3,886 4 803
Prepayments and accrued income 975 430 575 430
Cash and shari-term deposits 5 542 14,393 5,542 14,393

b) Credit risk

The Company’s income pnncipally comes in the form of recharges to joint venture partners Credil nsk associated with this relationship 1s
managed within the framework of the Jont Operating Agreements by committing to spending on projects when the funds from all operators are
already tn place

The Company may have significant cash balances arising from capital calls and its operating activiies at any particular tme  Cash 1s maintamed
on deposit with the Reyal Bank of Scotland

The Company's maximum exposure to credit nsk is imrted to the carrying value of financial assets as disclosed in Note 15(a)
¢) Currency exposure
1 Exposure to currency risk

The Company's statement of financral position and income statement are affected by movements in USD/GBP exchange rates Currency
exposure anses from sales or purchases in currencies other than functional currency At present, the Company has not engaged in hedging
transactions to eliminate exposure to these risks The Company's exposure to foreign currency is as follows

2009 2008
£000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 4,513 14,211
Trade receivables 4,168 677
Trade payables {2,786} (284)
! _Net exposure 5,895 14,604
The following sigruficant exchange rates applied during the year
Avgrage rate Reporting date spot rata
009 2008 2009 2008
USD GBP 0 6391 0 5367 06198 06919
li  Sensitivity analysis

The followng table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the

Sterling exchange rate, with all other vanables held

constant, of the Company’s profit before tax (due to movement in the foreign exchange component of costs)

Increase / Increase /
decrease in {decrease) on
£ USS$ rate lost before tax
$000
2009 +10% (951}
-10% a51
2008 +10% (2,356)
-10% 2,356

Methods and assumptions

Sensitwity analysis was performed by applying a percentage increase/decrease to components of profit and loss which were denomimated in

currency other than functional currency The 10% level of change was considered to be real
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d) Interest rate risk management

Financial instruments exposed to interest rate nsk include loan fachttes B and C {inked to LIBOR) and cash held on deposit (interest beanng
accounts at market rates) SPCs, have a fixed annual rate of interest of 8% for the first 7 years and 14% thereafter and therefore are not affected

by external changes in interest rates

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and senstnaty analysis on a change of 100 basis points m nterest rates on balances of which
interest i1s charged at 31 December 2009 1s set out below

Sensitvity Analysis
Profit and Loss Equity
Floatng  Fixed interest
Interest rate nsk exposures interest rate rate Total 100 Bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2009 ncrease decrease ncrease decrease
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash 5542 - 5,542 (55) 55 - -
1_Net financlal assets/(liabilitles) 5,542 - 5,542 i
Sensitvty Analysis
Profit and Loss Equity
Floating  Fixed interest
Interest rate nsk exposures Interest rate rate Total 100 bp 100bp 100bp 100 bp
31 December 2008 $00C $000 $000 increase decrease Increase decrease
Financial assets
Cash 14,393 - 14,393 (144) 144 - -
Net financlal assets/{liabilities) 14,393 - 14,393 I

e) Liquidity risk management

The Company currently relies on drawing capital from s shareholders and investors to manage its funding requirements The annual budget 1s
the basis for forecasting capital requirements and capital is called on the basis of it as adjusted for changes indicated in monthly and quarterty
management reports Liquidity nsk 1s managed by ensunng capital calls are issued well in advance to meet payment of expenses as they anse
Capital calls require Shareholders and Investors to subscnbe in US dollars to the issuance of additional Preference Shares and SPCs Until
utthsed, capidal drawn down 1s held on short term deposits and on the cument account

The following are the contractual matunties of financta!l habiities, including estimated interest payments and exciuding the impact of netting

agreements
31 December 2009 Carrying Contractual 6émth or lass 6-12 1-2 years 2-5years  More than
Amount cash flows months 5 years
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,469 {2,469} (2,469} - - - -
Provisions 1,000 {1,000) - (1,000) - - -
Subordinated preference certificates 350,671 (364,614) - - - - {364,614)
Preference shares 49 319 (49.319) - - - - (49.318)
| 403,459 (417,402) (2,489} {1,000} - - {413,033) |
31 December 2008 Carrying Contractual  6mth or less 812 1-2 years 2.5 yaars  More than
$000s Amount cash flows months 5 years
Non-derivatlve financial liabllitles
Trade and other payables 9,608 (9,608) {9,608) - - - -
Prowvisions 975 {875) - {975) - - -
Subordinated preference certificates 202,159 (293,088) - - - - {293,086)
Preference shares 46,593 {46,593) - - - - {46,5983)
259 335 {350,262) (9,808} (975) - - {339879) |

16. Related party disclosures
a) Equity interests

The Company financial statements include the financral statements of the subsidianes hsted i the following table

Name

Faurfield Energy Holdings Limited
Faurfield Acer Limited

Fairfield Betula Limited

Fairfield Cedrus Limited

Fairfield Fagus Limited

Country of Incorporation

England
England
England
England
England
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% Equity Interest

2009 2008
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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Transactions entered into dunng the year ended and as at 31 December 2009 are as follows

Recoverles and other

incoma to related Trade receivables owed by
parties*® related parties Loans owed by related parties
3000 $000
2009
Transactions with subsidianes 15,348 5213 254,243
Transactions with joint ventures 6,719 3,669 -
2008
Transactions with subsidianes 9,729 - 148,742
Transactions with joint ventures 6,475 - -

b) Entity with significant influence over the Company

Al 31 December 2009 by virtue of a 36% {2008 36%) shareholding of the Company, the oniy entity with significant influence was Warburg Pincus
LLC

¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties in the wholly owned Group

Sales and purchases of goods and services between related parties are made at normal market pnces and on terms equivalent to those that
prevail In arm's length transactions Qutstanding balances with entites other than subsidianes are unsecured, interest free and cash settlement is
expected within 30 days of invorce Terms and condittons for transactions with subsidianes are the same, with the exception that balances are
placed on intercompany accounts with no specified credit penod  Intercompany loans are not expected to be repaid in the iImmedrate future The
Company has not benefited from any guarantees for any related party receivables or payables and has not recognised any bad debts or made
any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties

17 Commitments, contingencies and guarantees

Capital and other commitments

At 31 December 2009, the Company was party to gross capital and other commitments of $139 millon (2008 $16 5 milion) These
commitments inctude both capital and operating contractual obligations

Contingencies and guarantees
The Company, as parent company to the Group, may enter into contracts on behalf of its subsidianes where better terms can be obtained

18 Events after the reporting date
Events subsequent to the reporting date are disclosed in Note 34 of the Conselidated Financial Statements
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Glossary of terms

$
AGM

Appraisal well

bbl
Board

boe

hoepd

bopd

BS

CcGU

Combined Code

Compames Act

The Company
DECC

Development
well

Duniin Area

United States Dollar

Annual general meebng

Dnlled to follow up a discovery and
evaluate its commercial potential

Barrel

The Board of Directors of Fairfield Energy
Limited

Barrels of o1l equivalent

Barrels of o1l equivalent per day

Barrels of oil per day

Brent System

Cash-generating umt

The Combined Code dated June 2006
appended to the Listing Ru'es

The Companes Acl 2006 (as amended)
andfor the Compames Act 2006 (as
amended), as appropriate

Fairfield Energy Limited

Department of Energy and Climate Change
Drilled to recover hydrocarbons

Dunlin area assets include references to
the Duniin, Dunlin South West, Skye/Block
6, Osprey and Merhin fields The first three
fields are held in the subsidiary Farrfield
Betula The remamnder are held in Fairfield
Fagus On cccasion, Darwin (also known
as North West Hutton), may be included in
the defimition of the Dunlin Area
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